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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Country of incorporation and domicile 

Nature of business and principal activities 

Share holder 
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Registered office 

Postal address 

Bankers 
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South Africa 

The primary purpose of the establishment is to 
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accommodation in the North West Province 
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Board Members 
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Heritage House 

Cookes Lake 

3031 Nelson Mandela Drive 

Mafikeng 

Postal Address 

PO Box 4488, MMABATHO, 2735 

First National Bank 
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2 REPORT FROM THE CHAIRPERSON 

It is with great pleasure to present this 
annual report to the North West 
Provincial Government and all its 
stakeholders. The current Board of 
Directors took office within the financial 
year under review. The Board had to 
take the proverbial bull by the horn and 
ensure that the North West P·arks and 
Tourism Board responds to the 
mandate given to it. The Board's first 
observation which raised a concern was 
the failure of the subsidiary companies 
in presenting their annual financial 
statements. To that end , an alignment 
protocol between the subsidiary 
companies and the Board was fully 
adopted. Among others, subsidiary 
companies are a standing item in the 
main board 's agendas so as to ensure 

that issues emanating from subsidiaries are fully captured . It is hoped that sooner than later, all 
challenges facing subsidiaries would be fully addressed. 

On the touris~ front, the. global economic meltdown did not spare us any blows as the North 
West Province. We have seen a steady decline in international tourist numbers despite the 
general average increase in the country. Be that as it may, statistically, the province seem to 
operate at the same level as it has done in the past and this is consistent with the budget 
allocation to the tourism mandate. In its very nature, destination marketing and promotions is a 
cost driver and the benefits thereof are· realized over time. As a result , the province needs to 
inject more resources not only on the regional and international front but also on the domestic 
front. The latter calls on the province to inculcate a culture of travel across the board for it is 
indeed true, that domestic tourism is the anchor of tourism growth and development in any 
economy. 

The Hotel Schools Division has done well given the mushrooming formations teaching 
hospitality and tourism skills in the country. We sincerely believe that there is no facility in the 
country that matches the provincial hotel schools given the configuration of our facilities. Our 
facilities provide us with a golden opportunity of migrating from theory to practice in situ. This is 
our competitive edge within the industry and we can only harvest more from it than our 
competitors. It might as well be noted that the division has created a great deal of interest in the 
SADC region. Universities in Mozambique and other formations in Botswana have expressed 
interest in · developing their own hotel schools with assistance and collaboration with the North 
West Parks and Tourism Board . . These matters are being pursued and in the fullness of time, 
the necessary proposals shall be forwarded to the department. 
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On the park management side, we are facing a challenge of successful land claimants. While 
government has developed the necessary protocols in respect of land claimants, the provincial 
government, throug~ the North West Parks and Tourism Board , needs to create models that 
would ensure that the landowners derive some form of benefit from the use of their land . One 
needs to mention however, that our communities have been very patient with us, and the new 
financial year calls on us and government to step a little quicker than before. 

Tourism in inland provinces including the North West is anchored on protected areas (parks). 
The drive or rather the thrust of the entity from the next financial year and beyond is to ensure 
that park infrastructure is refurbished or face-lifted . Park roads have been a challenge over time, 
but some positive strides have been made· in ensuring that these are addressed. To that 'Emd, 
the board -has identified the need to in-source rather than outsource the rehabilitation of park 
based infrastructure particularly roads and fences through the EPWP (Expanded Public Works 
Programme) approach. While outsourcing is much easier, a view is held that in-sourcing is the 
best option given the escalating price of goods and services. 

Of course it would be irresponsible of the Board not to touch on the issue of Rhino poaching. 
This is a scourge that we are dealing with on a daily basis. We hold a view that the NWPTB 
would not win this battle on its own. Winning this battle would require each citizen of the 
province and country to take part and spare a moment of their lives in defence of the rhino. We 
cannot allow a situation where the rh ino becomes extinct under our collective watch. If this is 
allowed to happen , we would have committed an offence that generations to come/will never 
ever forgive . 

Finally, let me take this opportunity to thank the MEC for her guidance and stewardship in 
ensuring that the entity delivers on this mandate. While it may not have been easy at times, we 
believe that we are in this together, and indeed, together we shall overcome. 

DR. DUDUZILE BOEMAH 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD 
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3. CEO'S OVERVIEW: 

The year under review has presented both challenges 
and opportunities for the North West Parks and Tourism 
Board (NWPTB). While some of the challenges alluded to 
have been tedious, the NWPTB has learned from them 
and has also identified new ways and methods of doing 
the ordinary. 

On the conservation front, the Madikwe buffaloes have · 
been afflicted with bovine tuberculosis (bovine TB). To 
that end, the park has been quarantined , meaning that 
there would be no movement of game into or outside of 
the parks. Be that as it may, the process of assessing 
the extent of the bovine TB is on-going and the relevant 
provincial department is assisting in this regard . It should 

be noted however, that the Madikwe bloodline buffaloes are the most sought after in the country, 
and the current situation will certainly compromise the Board 's revenue generation efforts. 

. ' 
In an effort to register the board 's contribution to job and skills development, an EPWP approach 

has been adopted where communities living on the periphery of the parks are employed to 

construct roads and install fences with the assistance of qualified and professional project 
managers. The strategic thrust of this approach is to ensure that communities learn as much 
skills as they can through these projects, with the hope that they would create their own 
companies in the future. To that end, and together with the national youth commission , a seven 
kilometre road was tarred at Madikwe Game Reserve . The same approach has been followed 
for projects iri Mafikeng, Botsalano·, Borakalalo, Bloemhof and Molopo Game Reserves. 

To date, 11 communities have successfully claimed their land within protected areas. While title 
has been restored to successful claimants, the condition set is that lhe land shall for all intents 
and purposes be utilized for conservation. Needless to say, successful claimants expect some 
form of benefit from the utilization of their land, and this remains a challenge simply because the 
allocation to the entity is based on the MTEF as fully expressed in the black book. It should be 
noted however, that the model that seeks to benefit communities is not only limited on monetary 
rewards for land use. Land claimants are at liberty to consider lodge development as one of the 
many options in a park where they would have successfully claimed land. The process is 
informed by Settlement Agreements and Co-management Agreements which would have been 
signed with them. To date, the Board has an agreement with the Barokologadi Community and a 
proposed agreement is on the table with Baphalane- ba-Sesobe. A process is in place for other 
claimant communities but sometimes the efforts of the Board are frustrated by internal wrangles 
within communities. Jointly with the national department of Land Affairs , processes are in place 
to address these wrangles. All agreements should be signed in due course. 

The Hotel School Division continues to make its mark in the skills development industry. Often 
times the school has to turn down applicants that do not only seek registration but also request ' 
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accommodation. The school is limited in its capacity to accommodate all applicants. In an effort 
to address this, overtures have been made with the Peermont Group for the possible purchase 
of the .Taung Hotel and Convention Center. Peermont has come back to the negotiating table 
and it is hoped that this matter will be settled _i n the financial year commencing 1 April 2014. 
While the Board pursues Taung , attempts have been made to approach possible funders for the 
building of a state of the art library at the Mahikeng campus. While the Board is not in a position 
to confirm anything , indications are that our proposal is receiving favourable consideration from 
the funders . 

On behalf of management and the North West Parks and Tourism Board family, let me take this 
opportunity to thank the Board of Directors for their stewardship and guidance, and for the many 
headaches you inflict on us at every board meeting. What is good to report is that once the 
headache subsides, real value is identified and appreciated in all the issues you raise. Lastly 
and on behalf of management and the broader family, we would want to thank the Honourable 
MEC for her interest and support in all that we do, as we pursue the mandate of the North West 
Parks and Tourism Board . 

.. u 

OLEHILE ALLAN LOSABA 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 



4. PREDETERMINE OBJECTIVES 

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD 2012/2013 

4.1. PROGRAMME 1: BIODIVERSITY CONSERVATION MANAGEMENT 
SUB-PROGRAMME 1.1: PROTECTED AREAS MANAGEMENT 
QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator Cumulative 2012/ 
2013 

"0 
~ CIJ 
CIJ > 1:71 CIJ ,_ :c ftl ... u 

cs: 

To ensure effective and Number of Provincial 4 0 
efficient management of the Protected Areas with 
provincial network of 15 approved integrated 
Protected Areas under the Management Plans 
management authority of the 

Number of approved 1 0 
NWP&TB 

wetlands management plans 

Number of job opportunities 150 1515 
created through protected 
areas management 
programmes 

Number of hectares of land 860 448 
cleared of alien/invasive 
plants in 15 protected areas 
in this financial year 

Hectares of prescribed fires 97070 29013 
done 

Distance of fence 13392 10044 
maintained in kilometres 

Distance of road network 3900 2925 
maintained in kilometres 

Number of METI 14 14 
assessments conducted 

7 

Challenges I reasons 
for variance 
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SUB-PROGRAMME 1.2: PROTECTED AREAS EXPANSION AND ESTABLISHMENT 
QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator Cumulative Challenges 1 reasons 
2012/ 2013 for variance 

"0 ... Ill 
Ill > 01 .!!! ... 
Ill .z= 
1- u 

< 
~ 

To manage in 2012/ 2013 Number of hectares of land 20000 0 The process of acquiring 
financial year, Protected Areas recruited for formal SG diagrams for Greater 
Expansion and Development conservation management. Vaalkop Dam delayed the 
Programme in line with signing of the 8000ha land 
provincial and national incorporation. The delay in 
legislative frameworks, the incorporation of two 
policies and targets farms into Lebatlane 

hindered additional SOOOha 
- development of Greater 

Lebatlane Community 
reserve. Legal dispute 
(counter claims) on Sebele 
farm for Barokologadi 
hindered possible SOOOha 
conservation area on the 
border of M<;Jdikwe game 
reserve. 

Number of current reserves 4 1 Five reserves are being 
to be formally proclaimed. surveyed in order to 

produce declaration 
diagrams for submission. 
The Pilanesberg file has to . be confirmed with DEA 
before submission. 

Number of hectares of land 10000 0 MRCA agreements for 
under Biodiversity 1000ha outstanding, 
Stewardship agreement. pending approval of 

Stewardship Management 
Agreements Framework by 
the Board. Will be done in 
the next quarter 

Number of Organisational 1 1 Draft Policy and 
Environmental -Policies Environmental 
Developed. Management Plan (EMP) 

are in place for approval by 
management before 
implementation. 

Number of Quarterly - 2 0 Seeping environmental 
Environmental compliance assessments done for 6 
reports compiled. reserves. Compliance 

reports will await the 
approval of Policy and 
EMP. 
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SUB-PROGRAMME 1.3: SOCIAL_ECOLOGY 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives 

To lead and drive in this 
financial year, an effective and 
efficient Social Ecology 
programme that entrenches 
and ensures local community 
derives access, meaningful 
participation and benefits from 
local natural resource asset 
base and from Provincial 
Protected Areas System. 

Performance Indicator 

Number of People and Parks 
Stakeholder Engagements 
undertaken. 

Number of concluded co
management agreements 
with Communal Property 
Association (CPA's) 

Number of Community 
Based Natural Resource 
Management initiatives 
undertaken 

Number of Education for 
Sustainable Development 

. (ESD) programmes 
implemented 
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Cumulative 2012/ 
2013 

"CC .... Q) 
Q) > e' Q) 

Ill :c 
1- u 

< 
10 7 

0 

8 6 

10 7 

Challenges I reasons 
for variance 



SUB-PROGRAMME 1.4: ECOLOGICAL SERVICES 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator Cumulative 2012/ Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

"c:l ... Qj 
Qj > en .!!! ... 

{2. J: 
u 
< 

To ensure the maintenance· of Number of veld condition 14 5 Limited staff, staff acting 
ecological integrity of assessments conducted in other positions 
protected environments, 

Number of vegetation maps 2 1 Limited staff, staff acting 
through provision of sound 

developed or revised in other positions 
ecological support services for 
the 2012/2013 financial year Number of burning plans 14 14 

developed / 

Number of sex and age 24 22 Logistical problems with 
survey· studies undertaken support staff during 1st 

round of surveys 

Execution of the Game 1 1 
count operation 

Number of Predator 1 0 
Management Research 
projects undertaken I 

Number of elephant 2 0 Plans ready for 
management plans submission to Exec 
submitted and approved by Mngt., Board of Directors 
DEDECf before going to DEDECf 

Number of Ecological status 14 14 
assessments done 

Number of ecological 6 5 
management plans 
developed 
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4.2 PROGRAMME 2: TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AND PROMOTIONS 
SUB-PROGRAMME 2.1: TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AND PROMOTIONS 
QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator Cumulative 2012/ 
2013 

"1:1 .... Qj 
Qj > e' Qj -
{! :c 

u cc 

Tourism Growth, Number of tourism 1 1 
Development and Promotion investment promotion 

initiatives 

Number of tourism 2 1 
development initiatives 
supported 

Number of tourism 10 10 
~nterprises supported for 
grading 

Number of Visitor 2 1 
Information Centres 
es!ablished (VICs) 

Number of niche tourism 2 2 
products developed 

Number of existing tourism 4 3 
products enhanced 

Number of domestic, 4 5 
regional and international 
marketing campaigns 
undertaken. 

Number of tourism 6 3 
destination promotion 
events 

. 
Number of tourism 340000 260000 
information inquiries attend 
to 

Number of guest hosting 12 12 
programmes and Media 
Campaigns 

11 

Challenges I reasons 
for variance 

-

. 
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SUB-PROGRAMME 2.2: RESEACH AND PLANNING 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 
j 

I 

Providing reliable and accurate Number of tourism 
tourism market information research initiatives 
through research undertaken 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

'a -.. Ql 
Ql > Cl Ql ... :c ta 
1- IJ 

c( 

4 3 

SUB-PROGRAMME 2.3: MARKETING COMMUNICATIONS 
QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 

Tourism Development & Number tourism marketing 
Promotions Communications communications 
Services publicities achieved 

12 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

'a .. Ql 
Ql > e' Ql 

ta :c 
1- IJ / c( 

24 30 

(SmaJ_I Heaven\ 
PLEASE KEEP THE TERRA\N C\.EAN 
NO VEHICLE CLOSER TH"N lOr.r. 

Of THE WATERFA\.\. 
PL~ASE DO NOT DAMAGE OR R£N\0"E 

A y Of THE UMESTON£ STA\.ACt\TES 
THESE STALACTITES~ GROW\NG S\NC.£ 

HISTORICAL \NFORMA1'\0N 

THPS LIMESJ'ONE WA'TERFA\.\. \S KNOWN 
AS A "'TUFA" 

IT WAS FORMED 'THROUGH 1\-\E 
OF GLACIERS DURtNG 1'HE \C.E ~GE 
MILLIONS OF YEARS AGO 

THIS PHENOMENON \S fOUNO ~'t 
SITES IN SOU1'HERN ~fR\C.~ 

SUPPORTED SY N\AGOGONG f"aM~a 
SpONSORED &Y h\~ N 



4.3. PROGRAMME 3: HOTEL SCHOOL DIVISION 
SUB-PROGRAMME 3.1: EDUCATION AND TRAINING 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 

-

To provide effective and Number of students enrolled 
affordable Hospitality, Tourism 

Number of students placed 
and Conservation (Nature) 

with industry for practical 
Education and Training 

training 

Number of students who 
have successfully completed 
their studies 

SUB-PROGRAMME 3.2: COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 

-

To ensure optimal utilization Report on occupancy rate of 
of commercial facilities. for rooms(%) 
income generation and 

Report on occupancy rate of 
students training 

conferences(%) 
-

/ 

13 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

"a .... QJ 
QJ > e' QJ 
ftl :c 
1- u 

< 
154 166 NA 

78 111 NA 

78 58 NA 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges 1 reasons 
2013 for variance 

"a .... QJ QJ > e' QJ 

{! :c 
u 
< 

80 44 Due to lesser bookings 
over the weekend as our 

75 39 
setup is business related 
in nature. Dilapidated 

' guest facilities in Ga-
Rankuwa . 

( 



4.4. PROGRAMME 4: CORPORATE & SUPPORT SERVICES 
SUB-PROGRAMME 4.1: CORPORATE, FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator Cumulative Challenges I reasons 
2012/ 2013 for variance 

'a .... Gl 
Gl > c:n Gl ... :c Ill ... u 

c( 

Render Good corporate Oversight leadership and 5 2 None 
governance support mandatory directives 

. services 
Number of policies reviewed 8 8 , 
and communicated 

None 

Number of internal audit 4 2 None 
projects executed 

Number of expense and 13 13 None 
revenue evaluations performed 

Percentage of tender 100 100 None 
applications successfully 
implemented 

Number of risk assessments 4 2 None 
conducted 

Number of output reports on 4 2 None 
legal matters 

Number of corporate 4 2 None 
communications and public -
relations services provided 

Development of HR strategy 0 0 ' 

Improved quality of PMDS and 4 2 None 
implementation thereof 

6 months to fill funded 4 2 None 
vacancies from the date of 
becoming vacant 

) Disciplinary and grievance 4 2 None 
cases finalized within 90 days 
of initiation process 

1% of the total payroll used for 4 2 None -
' 

training of the staff members 

Subjecting all relevant 4 1 · None 
positions to job evaluation 
across the Organization 

Implementation of OHS 4 2 None 
programmes in all work 
stations 

Recording progress against 1 0 . employment equity plan of the 
Board 

All reported & identified cases 4 2 None 
receiving counselling or other 
wellness programs 
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4.5 PROGRAMME 5: KGAMA WILDLIFE OPERATIONS 
SI,IB-PROGRAMME 5.1: MAXIMISE REVENUE 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 

Maximise Revenue Number of financial 
submissions 

Number game removal 
verificat ions and 
reconciliations 

4.6 PROGRAMME 6: DIRAPENG 
SUB- PROGRAMME 6.1: ACQUISITION AND MANGEMENT 

QUANTITATIVE REPORTING 

Strategic Objectives Performance Indicator 

Setting of systems for good Increased net profit(%) 
governance Number of annual report 
and profitability 

submitted 

Number of tourism 
investment facilitated 

Number of expense and 
revenue evaluations 
performed 

' 

15 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

'tl .... cu cu > CJI cu ... :c {! u 
c( 

4 4 None 

4 4 
None 

Cumulative 20121 Challenges I reasons 
2013 for variance 

'tl .... cu cu > CJI cu ... :c ftl 
1- u 

c( 

5 0 

1 0 
Awaiting Audit Opinion 

1 0 

13 6 None 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD (Incorporated by Act 3 of 
1997,as amended in 2003) Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2013 

5. BOARD'S RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL 

The directors are required by the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 1999, to maintain 
adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial 
statements and related financial information included in this report. It is the responsibility of the 
directors to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the NWPTB 
as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period 
then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the 
financial statements and were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives 
issued by the Accounting Standards Board . 

The financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied 
and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates . . 

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal 
financia l control established by the NWPTB and place considerable importance on maintaining a 
strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board sets 
standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in a cost effective 
manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined 
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an 
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the NWPTB and all employees 
.are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the NWPTB's business is 
conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach . The focus of risk 
management in the NWPTB is on identifying, assessing , managing and monitoring all known 
forms of risk across the NWPTB. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the board 
endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and 
ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The directors are of the opinion , based on the information and explanations given by 
management that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial 
records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of 
internal financial control can provide only reasonable , and not absolute, assurance against 
material misstatement or deficit. 

The directors have reviewed the NWPTB's cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2014 and, 
in the light of this review and the current financial position , they are satisfied that the NWPTB 
has or has access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future . Directors take cognizance of the challenges within the subsidiaries as far as 
it concerns capacity, internal and system controls . 

Although the directors are primarily responsible for the financial affairs of the NWPTB, they are 
supported by the NWPTB's external auditors. 
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The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the 
NWPTB's financial statements . The financial statements have been examined by the NWPTB's 

external auditors and their report is presented on page 23. 

The consolidated financial statements as set out on pages 32 to 82, which have been prepared 
on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on the 2nd of October 2013 
and were signed on its behalf by: 

Dr. D Boemah 
Chairperson of the Board 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD (Incorporated by Act 3 of 
1997,as amended in 2003) Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 
March 2013 

6. BOARD'S REPORT 

The directors submit their report for the year ended 31 March 2013. 

1. Incorporation 

The NWPTB was incorporated on 1 January 1997 and obtained its certificate to commence 
business on the same day. · 

2. Review of activities 

Main business and operations 

The Group is engaged in facilitating sustainable responsible tourism development and 
conservation area management, time share development and operation of tourist 
accommodation in the North West Province and operates principally in South Africa. 
Net deficit of the Group was R 86,016,110 (2012 : surplus R 8,866,999), after taxation of 
R (428,937) (2012: R 1 ,090, 150). 

3. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that as at 31 March 2013, the Group had accumulated surplus of 

R 360,740,355 and that the entity's total liabilities are exceeded by its assets by 
R 987;894,486. 

I 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a 
going concern . This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and 
that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

4. Subsequent events 

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial 
year. 

5. Accounting policies 

The financial statements prepared in accordance with the prescribed Standards of Generally 
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) issued by the Accounting Standards Board as the 
prescribed framework by National Treasury. 
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The directors of the Board during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: 

Name Nationality Changes 

Boemah D (Chairperson) South African Appointed 11 November 2012 
Gaoretelelwe M South African Resigned 31 August 2012 

Hlongwa JS (Deputy Chairperson) South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Dassie M R South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Khakhane.:tebballo T E South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Lebelo S M South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Maleka G South African Resigned 31 August 2012 

Modise M R South African Resigned 31 August 2012 
Mogadime J South African Resigned 31 August 2012 

Mokgoko G South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Mopeloa T F South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Motlhabane N C South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Nke M S South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Nthebe B G South African Appointed 11 November 2012 
Nyathi N J South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Sebeka T South African Resigned 31 August 2012 

Sikwane T M South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Tsagae L South African Appointed 11 November 2012 

Tyatya L South African Resigned 31 August 2012 

Losaba A 0 (Ex Officio) . South African Appointed 1 April 2009 

Corporate Governance General 

The Group is committed to business integrity, transparency and professionalism in all its 
activities. As part of this commitment, the Group supports the highest standards of corporate 
governance and the ongoing development of best practice. 

The Group confirms and acknowledges its responsibility to total compliance with the Code of 
Corporate Practices and Conduct ("the Code") laid out in the King Report on Corporate 
Governance for South Africa 2002. The Board discussed the responsibilities of management in 
this respect, at Board meetings and monitor the Group's compliance with the code on a quarterly 
monthly basis. 

The salient features of the Group's adoption of the Code are outlined below: 

Board of directors 

The Board: 
• retains full control over the Group, its plans and strategy; 
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• acknowledges its responsibilities as to strategy, compliance with internal policies, external 
laws and regulations, effective risk management and performance measurement, 
transparency and effective communication both internally and externally by the Group; 

• is of a unitary structure comprising : 
13 non-executive directors, all of whom are independent directors as defined in the 
Code; and 
1 executive director. 

Meetings 
The board schedules to meet at least 4 times per annum. 
Non-executive directors have access to all members of management of the Group. 

Auditors 
The Auditor General South Africa will continue in office for the next financial period 

Dr. D Boemah 

Chairperson of the Board 
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7. REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE AS AT 31 MARCH 2013 

The various audit committees, for the entity and the subsidiaries adopted appropriate formal 
terms of reference, which have been confirmed by their respective boards, and have performed 
their responsibilities as set out in the terms of reference. 

In performing its responsibilities the audit committee has reviewed the following: 
• The effectiveness of the internal control systems 
• The effectiveness of the internal audit function 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

• 

The risk areas of the group's operations tb be covered in the scope of the internal and 
external audits 
The adequacy, reliability and accuracy of fina.ncial information provided to management 
and other users of such information 
The accounting or auditing concerns identified as a result of the internal and external 
audits 
The entity's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions 
The activities of the internal audit function, including its annual work program, 
coordination with the external auditors, the reports of significant investigations and the 
responses of management to specific recommendations · 
The independence and objectivity of the external auditors 
The scope and results of the external audit function , its cost-effectiveness, as well as 
independence and objectivity of the external auditors 
Determine together with the Auditor General the materiality framework for the audit, 

Financial issues were addressed on a regular basis and at the level of the Board . The committee 
is satisfied that internal controls and systems have been put in place for the North West Parks 
and Tourism Board and Kgama Wildlife Operations, but is concerned about the controls within 
the Dirapeng Group. The following challenges were identified regarding the, 

• Strategic performances versus the original budget, 
• The non-adherence to some internal policies 
• The monitoring of performance management 
• Declaration of business interest 
• The alignment of internal policies, with those of government 
• Proper control and management 

. The internal audit function was managed internally and in certain areas it was outsourced and 
several reports were submitted. The audit committee realized the shortfall of th~ internal audit 
activities and wil1 provide direction towards the implementation thereof. 

The audit committee monitored the execution of the policies closely and considered the internal 
controls and systems appropriate in respect to, but take notice of the challenges and risks within 
the subsidiaries. 

• The reduction of the NWP& TB risks to an acceptable level 
• Meet the business objectives of the Board 
• Ensure the Board's assets are adequately safeguarded and 
• Ensure that the transactions undertaken are recorded in the Board 's records 

The audit committee has evaluated the annual financial statements of the North West Parks and 
Tourism Board and all subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2013, during their meeting held 
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on 29 May 2013. The committee concluded that some entities do not comply with the 
requirements of th~ Companies Act, 1973 (Act No. 61 of 1973), as amended in 2008, and the 
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended, as well as the 
Standards of Generally Recognized Accounting Practices 

The audit committee agrees that the adoption of the going concern premise is appropriate in 
preparing the annual financial statements. The audit com~ittee has therefore recommended the 
adoption of the NWP& TB and the Kgama Wild life Operations (SOC) Lt~ annual financial 
statements to the board of directors at their meeting held on 28 May 2013 and that the 
consolidated group financial statements are to be -submitted to the Auditor General by the end of 
July 2013. 

Mrs T Sikwane 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee 
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AUDITOR - GENERAL 

Auditing to build public confidence SOUTH AFRICA 

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE NORTH WEST PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE 
ON THE NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have a~dited the separate financial statements and was engaged to audit the consolidated 
financial statements of the North West Parks and Tourism Board and its subsidiaries set out 
on pages 32 to 82, which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2013, the consolidated and separate statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and the notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

The accounting authority's r~sponsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

2. The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in 
accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA 
Standards of GRAP), the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South 
Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), the North West Parks and Tourism Board Act, 1997 
(Act No. 3 of 1997) and the Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) 
(Companies Act) and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, wh~ther due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-General's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial 
statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act 
of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the Genera/ Notice issued in terms thereof 
and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 
the entity's preparation of the consolidated and .separate financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the consolidated and separate financial statements. 

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my unqualified audit opinion on the separate financial statements. 

6. Because of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, however, 
I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. · 
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Basis for disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

Trade receivable from exchange transactions 

7. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for receivables from exchange 
transactions disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available. I was unable to confirm the receivables from 
exchange transactions by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to receivables from exchange transactions of R22 670 183 
(2012 consolidated : R23 507 329) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial 
position , was necessary. 

8. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the provision for bad debts of 
R7 454 773 (2012 consolidated: R5 927 54 7) as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated 
financial statements and as required by SA Standards of GRAP, lAS 39 (AC 133); Financial 
instruments recognition and measurement. I was unable to verify the provision for bad debts 
by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment 
relating to provision for bad debts was necessary. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

9. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cash and cash equivalents 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available . I was unable to· confirm cash and cash equivalents by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments 
relating to cash and cash equivalents of R45 170 270 (2012 consolidated: R112 288 278) 
and the prohibited bank overdraft of R1 400 120 (2012 consolidated: R1 786 121) as 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements were necessary. 

Property, plant and equipment 

10. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for property, plant and equipment 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available. In addition , I was unable to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence that the entity revised the useful lives of assets at the reporting 
date as required by SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 17, Property, plant and equipment. I was 
unable to confirm property, plant and equipment by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to property, plant and equipment of 
R389 851 701 (2012 consolidated : R394 092 561) as disclosed in the consolidated 
statement of financial position was necessary. 

Investments in controlled entities 

11. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for investments disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
available. I was unable to confirm investments by alternative means. In addition, the entity 
did not assess the investment in controlled entities, individually or by category, for any 
indication that the investments in controlled entities may be impaired as required by SA 
Standards of GRAP: GRAP 26; Impairment of cash generating units. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to investments of R7 460 535 {2012 
consolidated: R30 907 271) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position 
was necessary. 

Investment in associates 

12. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for investment in associates 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available . In addition, I was unable to determine whether the 
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entity was permitted to contribute to the financial and operating policy decisions at the 
associate. As a result I was unable to determine that the entity correctly accounted for 
investment in associates as required by SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 7; Investment in 
associates'. I was unable to confirm the investment in associates by alternative means. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to investment in 
associates of R57 681 080 (2012 consolidated: R57 681 080) as disclosed in the 
consolidated statement of financial position was necessary. 

Operating lease asset 

13. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for operating lease assets 
·disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the entity did not have adequate 
controlling and monitoring systems in place. I was unable to confirm operating lease assets 
by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to 
operating lease assets of R59 633 327 (2012 consolidated: R52 634 .006) as disclosed in the 
consolidated statement of financial position was necessary. 

Current tax payable 

14. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for current tax 
payable of R2 519 678 as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position. I was 
unable to confirm current tax payable by alternative means. Consequently I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment to current tax payable of R2 519 678 (2012 consolidated: 
R2 519 678) was necessary. My audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements for 
the period ended 31 March 2012 was modified accordingly. My opinion on the current 
period's financial statements is also modified because of the possible effect of this matter on 
the comparability of the current period's figures. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

15. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for payables from exchange 
transactions disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available. I was unable to confirm the payable from exchange 
transactions by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustment reJating to payables from exchange transactions of R59 180 405 (2012 
consolidated: R40 988 922) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position; 
was necessary. 

16. The subsidiary entity did not recognise any leave pay accrual in accordance with paragraph 
10 of International Accounting Standards, lAS 19, Employee benefits. As the entity did not 
maintain adequate records of leave pay accrual at year end, I was not able to determine the 
full extent of the understatement in accruals and expenditure as it was impracticable to do 
so. 

Value added tax (VAT) payable 

17. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for VAT payable disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
available. I was unable to confirm VAT payable by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to VAT payable ofR2 464 625 (2012 
consolidated: R3 286 062) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position, 
was necessary. 

Provisions 

18. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for provisions disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
available. I was unable to confirm provisions by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to provisions of R1 636 305 (2012 
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consolidated: R406 409) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position, was 
necessary. 

Other financial liabilities 

19. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for other financial liabilities 
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from 
management was not made available. I was unable to confirm the other financial liabilities by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating 
to other financial liabilities of R20 000 000 (2012 consolidated : R20 000 000) as disclosed in 
the consolidated statement of financial position , was necessary. 

Deferred tax 

20. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for deferred tax disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
available. I was unable to confirm the deferred tax by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to deferred tax of R3 167 496 (2012 
consolidated: R3 506 685) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position, 
was necessary. 

Reserves 

21. During 2012, I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriat~ audit evidence for the fair value 
adjustment to the "assets-available-for-sale reserve" as information requested from 
management was not made available. I was unable to confirm this reserve by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to reserves of 
R13 997 846 as disclosed in the statement of financial position was necessary. My audit 
opinion on the financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2012 was modified 
accordingly. My opinion on the current period 's financial statements is also modified because 
of the possible effect of this matter on the comparability of the current period's figures. 

22. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that management has properly 
accounted for other non-distributable reserves for the current and prior year due to the non
availability of accounting records. I was unable to confirm other non-distributable reserves by 
alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment to other 
non-distributable reserves of R133 997 846 (2012 consolidated: R138 938 969) as disclosed 
in the consolidated statement of financial position, was necessary. 

Revenue 

23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for revenue disclosed in the 
financial statements as information requested from management was not made available. I 
was unable to confirm revenue by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any adjustment relating to revenue of R68 667 564 (2012 consolidated: 
R116 968 983) 'as disclosed in the statement of financial performance was necessary. 

Cost of sales 

24. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for cost of sales disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
available. I was unable to confirm cost of sales by alternative means. Consequently, I was 
unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to cost of sales of R20 499 097 (2012 
consolidated : R43 492 896) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial 
performance was necessary. 

Other income 

25. I was unable to 'obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for other income disclosed in the 
consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not made 
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available. I was unable to confirm the other income by alternative means. Consequently, I 
was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to other income of R21 746 661 
(2012 consolidated : R 13 682 055) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial 
performance, was necessary. 

Operating expenses 

26. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for operating expenses disclosed 
in the consolidated financial statements as information requested from management was not 
made available. I was unable to confirm operating expenses by alternative means. In 
addition, contrary to the requirements of SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 1 Presentation of 
Financial Statements, employee related costs of R167 275 348 (2012 consolidated: 
R140 847 396) were not presented separately. Consequently, I was -unable to determine 
whether any adjustment relating to operating expenditure of R373 215 319 (2012 
consolidated: R319 685 .738) as disclosed in the consolidated statement of finanCial 
performance was necessary. 

Irregular Expenditure · _ 

- 27. I was unable to obtain sufficie~t appropriate audit evidence to determine whether payments 
at subsidiaries were made in terms of the supply chain management regulations and policy. I 
·was unable to confirm these payments by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to 
determine whether any irregular expenditure on the part of the subsidiaries in addition to 
irregular expenditure of R1 048 091 (2012 consolidated: R492 812) should have been 
disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements. 

Related party balances and transactions 

28. Due to the impact of the limitations placed on the scope of the audit by management, I was 
unable to practicably quaQtify the impact of these limitations on the related party balances. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment relating to related party 
balances on the part of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial 
statements was necessary. 

Cash flow statement 

29. Taking into consideration the impact of the limitation placed on the scope of the audit by 
management, I am unable to quantify the impact of these limitations on the cash flow 
statement and notes thereto. I was unable to confirm the cash flow statement by alternative 
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustments relating to the 
cash flow statement and notes thereto were necessary. 

Going concern 

30. I was unable to confirm the going concern ability by alternative means as the key indicators 
used by management in assessing the going concern assumption could not be provided. 
Consequently, I was unable to determine the appropriateness of the going concern 
assumption used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 

Prior period errors 

31. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to determine whether corrections 
of prior period errors were disclosed as required by SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 3, 
Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors, as information requested 
from management was not made available. I was unable to confirm the correction of prior 
period errors by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any 
adjustments relating to the disclosure of prior period errors as disclosed in note 44 to the 
consolidated financial statements, were necessary. 
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Contingencies 

32. SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 19, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets; 
paragraph 95 requires that an entity shall disclose for each class of contingent liability at the 
reporting date a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability, an estimate of its 
financial effect, an indication of the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any 
outflow; and the possibility of any reimbursement. Contrary to this requirement, the 
subsidiary entities did not disclose their contingencies. In addition , I was unable tb obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence that all contingencies have been recorded as the 
subsidiary entities did not have adequate monitoring systems in place. Consequently, I "Yas 
unable to determine whether any adjustment to contingencies as disclosed in note 41 to the 
consolidated financial statements was necessary. 

Risk management 

33. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to conclude that the entity 
complied with SA Standards of GRAP, GRAP 104; Financial instruments. The natwe and 
extent of risks arising from financial instruments have not been assessed and disclosed in 
the financial statements. I '«as unable to confirm the exposure to these risks by alternative 
means. 

Commitments 

34. Operating leases (lessee) of R1 05 439 376 (2012: R1 08 634 509) and operating leases 
(lessor) of R185 216 919 (2012: R191 117 707) as disclosed in the consolidated financial 
statements of Dirapeng (Pty) Ltd have not been included in these consolidated financial 
statements 

Goodwill 

35. Taking into account the limitations identified in the consolidated financial statements as set 
out in this report, I was unable to practicably quantify the impact of these limitations in the 
calculation of goodwill. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment 
relating to goodwill of R3 626 537 (2012 consolidated : R3 626 537) as disclosed in the 
consolidated statement of financial position , was necessary. 

Consolidated financial results 

36. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to verify the completeness of the 
group. There is a significant uncertainty whether all entities in the group have been identified 
and consolidated and as a result thereof, I was unable to place reliance on these . 
consolidated annual financial statements. The group's -records did not permit the application 
of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I was unable to determine the 
appropriateness, completeness and accuracy of the consolidation process. 

Opinion on the separate financial statements 

37. In my opini9n , the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects , the 
financial position of the North West Parks and Tourism Board as at 31 March 2013 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with SA . 
Standards of GRAP and as required by the PFMA, the North West Parks and Tourism Board 
Act and the Companies Act. 

Disclaimer of opinion on the consolidated financial statements 

~8 . Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer on the 
consolidated financial statements paragraphs, I have not been able to obtain sufficient 
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated · 
financial s~atements. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. 
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Emphasis of matter 

39. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters: 

Basis of accounting 

40. As indicated in accounting policy note 1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the entity 
deviated from the SA Standards of GRAP, lAS 41 (AC 137) Agriculture. National Treasury 
approved a deviation from the basis of accounting policy applicable for the public entity. This 
policy may be used by the Board until such time as an alternate standard of GRAP is 
available . 

. Restatement of corresponding figures 

41 . As disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, the North West Parks and 
Tourism Board restated corresponding figures for 31 March 2012. 

Material impairments 

42. As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, an investment of 
R23 446 636 in a subsidiary, was impaired. 

43. As disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, receivables of R26 779 803 
(2012: R16 843 423) were impaired. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

44. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the 
following findings relevant to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with 
laws and regulations and internal control , but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion . 

Predetermined objectives 

45. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the 
information in the annual performance report as set out on pages 7 to 15 of the annual 
report. 

46. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the 
overall criteria of usefulness and reliabi lity. The usefulness of information in the annual 
performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National 
Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent 
with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether 
indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and 
time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing 
programme performance information (FMPPI) . 

.4 7. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to 
determine whether it adequately reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and 
complete). 

48. The material findings are as follows: 

Usefulness of information 

Consistency 

49. Treasury Regulation 30.1.3(g) requires that the annual performance plan should form the 
basis for the annual report, therefore requiring the consistency of objectives, indicators and 
targets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 25% of the reported objectives 
are not consistent with the objectives as per the approved annual performance plan . 
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50. Treasury Regulation 30.1 .3(g) requires that the annual performance plan should form the 
basis for the annual report, therefore requiring the consistency of objectives, indicators and 
targets between planning and reporting documents. A total of 92% of the reported targets are 
not consistent with the targets as per the approved annual performance plan. 

Measurability 

51 . The FMPPI requires that indicators/measures should have clear unambiguous data 
definitions so that data is collected consistently and is easy to understand and use. A total of 
100% of the indicators relevant to Biodiversity Conservation Management were not well 
defined in that clear, unambiguous data definitions were not available to allow for data to be 
collected consistently. 

52. The FMPPI requires that it must be possible to validate the processes and systems that 
produce the indicator. A total of 100% of the indicators relevant to Biodiversity Conservation 
Management were not verifiable in that valid processes and systems that produce the 
information on actual performance did not exist. 

Compliance with laws and regulations 

53. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws 
and regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. 
My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and 
regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows: 

Annual financial statements, performance and annual report 

54. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not, in all material respects, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of section 55(2) of the PFMA. Material misstatements 
relating to property, plant and equipment identified by the auditors, were subsequently 
corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion. 

Expenditure management 

55. The accounting authority failed to take reasonable, effective and appropriate steps to prevent 
irregular expenditure as required by section 51 (1 )(b)(ii) of the PFMA. 

Internal control 

56. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidated financial statements, 
annual performance report and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported 
below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant deficiencies that 
resulted in the basis for disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the annual performance report 
and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report. 

Leadership 

57. The leadership's philosophy and operating style is not contributing towards a clean 
administration. This is evidenced by the inappropriate implementation and monitoring of 
action plans to address prior year audit findings, the establishment of a culture of honesty, 
ethical business practices and good governance. Leadership failed to appoint sufficient 
appropriately skilled staff in key positions within the finance unit and the training and 
development initiatives failed to address the underlying deficiencies that caused matters to 
be reported on repeatedly . 

Financial and 'performance management 

58. The accounting authority did not monitor reporting, compliance with laws and regulations and 
internal control as supporttng documentation could not be submitted during the audit and 
management failed to respond to critical audit issues. The inability of management to 

/ 
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addre·ss prior year audit findings and staff in finance not understanding the requirements of 
the financial reporting framework is of grave concern. Management's lack of commitment to 
address repetitive findings relating to supply chain management regulations is indicative of 
financial misconduct 

Governances 

59. The accounting authority failed to implement good governance principles within the entity. 
These include the development and implementation of a risk management policy, fraud 
prevention plan and an effective internal audit function and audit committee. 

Rustenburg 

23 October 2013 

AUDI T OII. - GEN E RAL 

SOUTH AFRICA 

Auditing to build public confidence 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
{Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2013 
Grou NWPTB 

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 11 15,194,048 25,094,625 14,290,939 24,109,442 
Current tax receivable 60, 115 60,115 
Operating lease asset 8,811 7,116 
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 12 22,670,183 23,507,329 10,881 ,311 21 ,234,512 
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 13 272 ,~84 2,855,729 271 ,751 369,943 
Cash and cash equivalents 15 45,170,270 112,288,278 39,319,738 85,723,913 

83 376 011 163 813192 64 763 739 131 437 810 

Non-Current Assets 
Game - Biological assets 3 503,191 ,816 494,887,983 503,191 ,816 494,887,983 
Property, plant and equipment 4 389,851 ,701 394,092,561 238,673,750 243,787,789 
Goodwill 5 3,626,537 3,626,537 
Investments in controlled entities 6 7,460,535 30 ,907,271 1,260,937 24,502,728 
Investments in associates 7 57,681 ,080 57,681,080 
Loans to shareholder 8 1,260,332 1,156,268 
Other receivables - SARS 9 2,780,438 2,780 ,438 2,780,438 2,780,438 
Operating lease asset 59,633,327 52,634,006 

1 ,025,485, 766 1,037,766,144 745,906,941 765,958,938 

Non-current assets held for sale 36458 36 459 36 458 36,459 

Total Assets 1 '1 08,898,235 1,201 ,615, 795 810,707,138 897,433,207 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Finance lease obligation 18 403,928 923,174 403,928 923,174 
Operating lease liability 13,935 
Payables from exchange transactions 22 59,180,405 40 ,988,922 29,579,069 26,882,031 
Current tax payable 23 2,519,678 2,519,678 
VAT payable 24 2,464,652 3,286,062 
Unspent conditional grants 19 15,549,780 26,977,908 15,549,780 26,977,908 
Provisions 20 1,636,305 406,409 273,000 404,000 
Interest bearing borrowings 21 773,488 611,794 773,488 611,794 
Bank overdraft 15 1,400,120 1 ,786,121 

83 942 291 77,500 068 46 579 265 55 798 907 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Loans from shareholders 8 13,813,482 10,821,312 
Other financial liabilities 20,000,000 20,000,000 
Finance lease obligation 18 80,480 484,408 80,480 484,408 
Deferred tax 10 3,167,496 3,506,685 
Interest bearing borrowings 21 1,590,127 1 ,590,127 

37 061 458 36,402,532 80 480 2 074 535 

Total Liabilities 121,003z749 113,902,600 46,659,745 57,873,442 

Net Assets 987,894,486 1,087 '713, 195 764,047,393 839,559,765 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 1 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Financial Position 

Figures in Rand 

Net Assets 
Reserves 
Game revaluation reserve 
Fair value reserve 
General reserves 
Restricted reserves 
Accumulated surplus 

Notes 

16 
17 

Grou 

2013 

477,084,201 
13,593,292 

133,997,846 
2,478,792 

360,740,355 

2012 

488,925,166 
13,388,575 

138,938,969 
4,660,393 

441 ,800,092 

Total Net Assets 987,894,486 1,087,713,195 
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NWPTB 

2013 2012 

477,084,201 488,925,166 

2,478,792 4,660,393 
284,484,400 345,974,206 

764,047,393 839,559,765 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003} 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Group NWPTB 

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Revenue 
Sale of goods 68,667,564 116,968,983 
Rendering of services 55,352,928 55,600,050 56,454,071 56,824,706 
Game sales 36,701 ,000 8,463,250 65,053,627 
Donations received 9,654,829 9,654,829 
Government grants & subsidies 148,022,539 143,428,271 148,022,539 143,428,271 

25 281,697,860 352,698,304 222,594,689 265,306,604 

Cost of sales 
Purchases (20,499,097} (43,492,896} 

Gross surplus 261,198,763 309,205,408 222,594,689 265,306,604 

Other income 
Rental income 282,142 3,017,542 
Discount received 213,582 107,521 213,582 107,521 
Recoveries 114,528 10,409 114,528 
Other income 28 21 ,746,661 13,682,055 567,701 1,872,933 
Interest received 33 3 959 798 3 604 370 3 456 559 3 207 055 

26,316,711 20,421,897 4,352,370 5,187,509 

Expenses (Refer to page 36} {373,215,319) (319,685, 738) (288, 185,801) (251 ,864,264) 

Operating (deficit) surplus (85,699,845} 9,941,567 (61 ,238, 7 42} 18,629,849 
Finance costs 35 (735,466} 58,298 (316,116} (649,277} 

Restructuring costs (9.736} (42,716} 

(745,202) 15,582 {316,116) (649,277) 

(Deficit) surplus before taxation (86,445,047) 9,957,149 (61 ,554,858} 17,980,572 
Taxation 36 (428,937} .1.090,150 

(Deficit) surj!lus for the ~ear (86,016, 11 0) 8,866,999 (61,554,858) 17,980,572 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated AnnuaiFinancial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (continued) 
Group NWPTB 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Operating expenses 
Accounting fees (2,455) (571 ,047) 
Administration and management fees (718,294) (9, 100,028) 

Advertising (1 ,093,001) (1 ,181 ,198) (800,453) (593,284) 

Alien plant control (129,299) (1 '139,225) (129,299) (1 '139,225) 

Assets expensed (250,263) (197,785) (250,263) (197,785) 

Audiovisual and photography (102,812) (102,812) 

Auditors remuneration 37 (8,771 ,398) (3,418,41 0) (3,035,723) (2,661 ,887) 

Bad debts expense (10,002,139) (5,927,546) (1 0,002, 139) (5,927,546) 

Bank charges (936,914) (629,988) (502,593) (446,032) 

Board costs (1 ,215,649) (1 ,007,049) (1 ,215,649) (1 ,007 ,049) 

Cleaning (2,487,343) {3,248,731) (1 ,489,759) (1,174,164) 

Commission paid (1 ,487 ,529) (2,940,814) (1 ,130,459) (193,908) 

Conditional grants expenses (9,098,644) (16,303, 121) (9,098,644) (16,303,121) 

Conferences and seminars (557,319) (361 ,350) (557 ,319) (361 ,350) 

Consulting and professional fees (2,842, 180) (3,917' 170) (973,818) (1 ,547,667) 

Consumables (1 ,549,027) (966,347) (944,374) (646,843) 

Delivery expenses (133,138) (154,062) (73,911) (76,562) 

Depreciation, amortisation and impairments (35,386,314) (35,120,652) (30,417 ,490) (30, 118,411) 

Donations (1 ,711) (13,054) (1 ,711) (13,054) 

Employee costs (167,275,348) (140,847,396) (131 ,688,016) (117,630,808) 

Entertainment (26,879) (35,429) (6,836) (30,431) 

Fines and penalties (205) 

Flowers (2,418) (10,180) 

Game census (3,096,751) (3,322,677) (1 ,597,170) (2,450,224) 

Gas (96,574) (42,502) (96,574) (42,502) 

Graduation ceremony (174,865) (143,237) (174,865) (143,237) 

Guest supplies (1 ,195,468) (871 ,026) (71 ,091) (383,093) 

Hire (13,435) (144,965) 

Hospitality consumables (5,050,301) (2,761 '186) (5,050,301) (2,761 '186) 

IT expenses (2,400,558) (322,914) 

Impairment of loans (32,792,009) (1 ,544,287) (23,446,636) 

Insurance (1 ,4 75,049) (1 ,567,683) (708,042) (887,487) 

Laundry (252,474) (210,488) (252,474) (210,488) 

Lease rentals on operating lease (3,223, 140) (3, 756,801) (2,134,264) (2,397,276) 

Legal expenses (1 ,030,313) (794,559) (1 ,030,313) (794,559) 

Licence and membership fees . (1 ,564,760) (1 ,980,678) (941 ,056) (844,806) 

Loss on disposal of assets (91 ,830) (140,066) (91 ,830) (140,066) 

Madikwe restoration project expenses (6,073,558) (6,073,558) 

Marketing expenses (2,500,281) (368,277) (1 ,953,131) 

Marketing promotions (3,667,621) (9,766,423) (3,347,493) (9,252, 149) 

Medical expenses (680) (930) 

Meetings (499,430) (745,144) (499,430) (745,144) 

Motor vehicle expenses (4,789,025) (4,311 ,538) (3,333,518) (3,580, 184) 

Other general expenses (8,934,504) (6,660 ,096) (2,898, 111) (4,334,342) 

Pest control (155,951) (132,062) (19,320) 

Postage (6 ,278) (26,313) 

Printing and stationery (1 ,848,771) (2,102,054) (1 ,394,791) (1 ,662,775) 

Rates and taxes (809,524) (890,439) (796,520) (890,439) 

Recruitment expenses (447,274) (37,613) (161 ,638) 

Repairs and maintenance (11 '129,382) (15,541 ,014) (11 ,075,542) (14,693,443) 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Financial Performance 
Grou NWPTB 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Research and development costs (1 ,844,820) (1 ,329,924) (1 ,844,820) ' (1 ,329,924) 

Royalties and license fees (141 ,105) (188,032) 

Salaries temporary worker (149,841) (134,600) (149,841) (134 ,600) 
Security (3, 738,013) (3,788,088) (3,416,710) (3,215, 798) 
Software expenses (151,443) (41,836) (140,855) (41 ,836) 
Staff welfare (2,1 00,047) (2,290,951) (1 ,300,723) (594,640) 
Subsistence (1 ,631 ,790) (952,936) (1 ,51 0,302) (918,387) 
Telephone and fax (4,445,210) (3,795,853) (2,800,200) . (2,684,063) 
Theft (5,000) (5,000) 
Tourism development (55,852) 
Training (3,040,730) (3,249,431) (2,713,557) (2,452,071) 
Travel - local (10,501 ,219) (11 ,059,673) (9,037,486) (9,416,638) 
Travel - overseas (662,064) (53,294) (662,064) (53,294) 
Uniforms (801 ,679) (1 ,002,038) (595,689) (879,493) 
Utilities (6,556,626) (6,522,823) (4,439,618) (3,860,993) 

(373,215,319) (319,685,738) (288,185,801) (251,864,264) 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Revaluation Fair value Other NOR Restricted Total reserves Accumulated Total net 

Figures in Rand reserve adjustm Reserve surplus assets 
ents 
reserve 

Group 
Balance at 01 April 2011 488,803,744 13,388,575 99,139,611 1,863,637 603,195,567 432,933,093 1 ,036,128,660 
Changes in net assets 
Movement for the year 208,136 2,796,756 3,004,892 3,004,892 
Prior year adjustments 121,422 39,591 ,222 39,712,644 39,712,644 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 121 ,422 39,799,358 2,796,756 42,717,536 42,717,536 
Surplus for the year 8,866,g99 8,866,999 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 121 ,422 39,799,358 2,796,756 42,717,536 8,866,999 51 ,584,535 

Total changes 121,422 39,799,358 2,796,756 42,717,536 8,866,999 51 ,584,535 

Balance at 01 April 2012 488,925,166 13,388,575 138,938,969 4,660,393 645,913,103 441,800,092 1,087,713,195 
w Changes in net assets 
...... Movement for the year (11 ,840,965) 204,717 (2,181 ,601) (13,817,849) {13,817,849) 

Prior year adjustments (4,941 ,123) (4,941 ,123) 4,956,373 15,250 
(Note 44) 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets (11 ,840,965) 204,717 (4,941 ,123) (2,181 ,601) (18,758,972) (13,802,599) 
Surplus for the year (86,016,110) (86,016,110) 

Total recogni~ed income and expenses for the year (11,840,965) 204,717 (4,941 ,123) (2,181 ,601) (18,758,972) (86,016,110) (99,818, 709) 

Total changes (11 ,840,965) 204,717 {4,941 ,123) (2,181 ,601) (18,758,972) (81 ,059,737) (99,818,709) 

Balance at 31 March 2013 477,084,201 13,593,292 133,997,846 2,478,792 627,154,131 360,7 40,355 987,894,486 

Notes 16 17 

NWPTB 
Balance at 01 April 2011 341,227,721 1,863,637 343,091,358 . 327,993,634 671,084,992 
Changes in net assets 
Movement for the year 147,697,445 2,796,756 150,494,201 150,494,201 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 147,697,445 2,796,756 150,494,201 150,494,201 
Surplus for the year 17,980,572 17,980,572 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year 147,697,445 2,796,758 150,494,201 17,980,572 168,474,773 

Total changes 147,697,445 2,796,756 150,494,201 17,980,572 168,474,773 



NORTH WEST PARKS AND-TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
Revaluation Fair value Other NOR Government Total reserves Accumulated Total net 

reserve adjustment grant reserve surplus assets 

assets-
available-for-

Fiaures in Rand sale reserve 

Balance as at 01 Aenl 2011 341 ,227,721 1,863,673 343,091 ,394 307,565,804 650,657,198 

Movements for the ~ear 147,697,445 2,796,720 150,494,165 150,494,165 

Prior eeriod adjustments (Note44) 3,675,786 3,675,786 

Change in accounting policy 16,752,044 16,752,044 

Surplus for the year 17,980,574 17,980,574 

Balance at 01 April 2012 488,925,166 4,660,393 493,585,559 345,974,206 839,559,765 
Changes in net assets 
Movement for the ~ear {11,840,965) {2,181,601} {14,022,566) 65,050 {13,957,516) 
Net income (losses) recognised directly In net assets (11 ,840,965) (2 ,181 ,601) (14,022,566) (13,957,516) 

w Surplus for the year • (61 ,554,858) (61 ,554,858) 
co 

Total recognised income and expenses for the year (11 ,840,965) (2, 181 ,601) (14,022,566) (61 ,554,858) (75,512,374) 

Total changes (11,840,965) (2, 181 ,601) (14,022,566) (61 ,489,808) (75,512,374) 

Balance at 31 March 2013 477,084,201 2,478,792 479,562,993 284,484,400 764,047,393 

Notes 16 17 



NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
{Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 201 3 

Gash Flow St@tement 
Group NWPTB 

Figures in Rand Notes 2013 2012 2013 2012 

' Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Exchange transactions 169,908,310 116,433,879 88,764,842 116,433,879 
/ Grants 148,022,539 143,428,271 138,923,895 127,125,150 

Interest income 3,959,798 3,604,370 3,251,714 2,857,069 

321,890,647 263,466,520 230,940,451 246,416,098 

Payments 
Employee costs (167,443,729) (140,981 ,996) (131,837,857) (117,765,408) 
Suppliers (166,461 ,908) (1 02,536,528) (93,7 41 '736) (77,074,946) 
Finance costs (640,679) 200,355 (221 ,329) (507,220) 
Taxes on surpluses 40&40 428,937 (1 ,306, 715) 

(334, 117,379) (244,624,884) (225,800,922) (195,347,574) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 39 (12,226, 732) 18,841,636 5,139,529 51,068,524 

Cash flows from Investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (31 ,268, 150) (6,239,687) (25,395,279) (6,113,323) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4 23,193 1 1 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets {2,780,438) (2 '780 ,438) 
Purchase of game 3 (2~ ,702 ,030) (23,702,030) 

Net cash flows from investing activities (54,946,987) (9,020, 124) (49,097,309) (8,893,760) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of other financial liabilities 20,000,000 
Movement in interest bearing borrowings (1 ,428,433) 2,201,921 (1 ,428,433) (2 ,716,987) 
Loans to SOEs 2,888,106 9,665,044 
Finance lease payments (1 ,017,961) 1,265,525 (1,017,961) 2,796,720 

Net cash flows from financing activities 441,712 33,132,490 (2,446,394) 79,733 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash (66,732,007) 42,954,002 (46,404,174) 42,254,497 
equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 110,502,157 67,548,155 85,723 ,913 43,469,416 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 43,770,150 110,502,157 39,319,738 85,723,913 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Registration number (Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003)) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Consolidated Annual Financial Statements 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 

Game has been disclosed in terms of an entity specific accounting policy, reviewed by National Treasury and found 
adequate for implementation. This policy may be used by the Board until an alternative standard is available. This specific 
policy deviates from GRAP 101 . Management believes this represents a more correct presentation of the fair value of the 
Game as this standard does not make provision for animals used primarily for non-productive purposes such as 
recreational parks or game farms, as these fall outside the scope of this standard, GRAP 101 .10. However should 
compliance to GRAP 101 have been effected this would have resulted in either a surplus or a deficit in the statement of 
financial performance, dependent on whether the value of game increased or decreased over a financial period. 

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical 
cost convention ·unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 

·These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 Consolidation 

Basis of consolidation 

Consolidated annual financial statements are the annual financial statements of the Group presented as those of a single 
entity. 

The consolidated annual financia l statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the NWPTB and all 
controlled entity, including special purpose entities, which are controlled by the NWPTB. 

Control exists when the NWPTB has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of another entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. 

The results of controlled entities, are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date of 
acquisition or date when control commences to the effective date of disposal or date when control ceases. The difference 
between the proceeds from the disposal of the controlled entity and its carrying amount as of the date of disposal, including 
the cumulative amount of any exchange differences that relate to the controlled entity recognised in net assets in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, is recognised in the 
consolidated statement of financial performance as the surplus or deficit on the disposal of the controlled entity. 

An investment in an entity is accounted for in accordance with the Standards of GRAP on Financial Instruments from the 
date that it ceases to be a controlled entity, unless it becomes an associate or a jointly controlled entity , in which case it is 
accounted for as such . The carrying amount of the investment at the date that the entity ceases to be a controlled entity is 
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with the Standards of GRAP on Financial 
Instruments. 

The annual financial statements of the NWPTB and its controlled entities used in the preparation of the consolidated 
annual financial statements are prepared as of the same reporting date. 

When the reporting dates of the NWPTB and a controlled entity are different, the controlled entity prepares, for 
consolidation purposes, additional financia l statements as of the same date as the NWPTB unless it is impracticable to do 
so. When the financia l statements of a controlled entity used in the preparation of consolidated financial statements are 
prepared as of a reporting date different from that of the NWPTB, adjustments are made for the effects of significant 
transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of the NWPTB's financial statements. In any case, the 
difference between the reporting date of the controlled entity and that of the NWPTB shall be no more than three months. 
The length of the reporting periods and any difference in the reporting dates is the same from period to period . 

Adjustments are made when necessary to the financial statements of the controlled entities to bring their accounting 
policies in line with those of the NWPTB. 

All intra-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses are eliminated in fu ll on consolidation. 

40 



NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Registration number (Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003)) 
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

Consolidation (continued) 

Minority interests in the net assets of the Group are identified and recognised separately from the NWPTB's interest therein, 
and are recog,nised within net assets. Losses applicable to the minority in a consolidated controlled entity may exceed the 
minority interest in the controlled entity's net assets. The excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority, are 
allocated against the majority interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make 
an additional investment to cover the losses. If the controlled entity subsequently reports surpluses, such surpluses are 
allocated to the majority interest until the minority's share of losses previously absorbed by the majority has been 
recovered. · 

Minority interests in the surplus or deficit of the Group is separately disclosed. 

1.2 Game 

Game is measured at their fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. The fair value of game is determined based on market · 
prices of game of similar age, breed and genetic merit. 

The estimated quantity of game is scientifically calculated by using statistical projections that are based on game movements, 
actual hunts, introductions and an estimated growth rate. Game is counted in September of each year. Count quantities are 
compared to estimated quantities. All movements after stock count date are taken into account in the year-erid estimated 
quantities. 

The surplus I deficit on valuation is transferred to a revaluation reserve. 

-lncreases/(decreases) in the carrying value of game as a result of the periodic valuations are credited/( debited) to the 
revaluation reserve. ( 

1.3 Investment property 

Investment property is property (land or a building- or part of a building -or both) held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for: 

use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes, or 
sale in the ordinary course of operations. 

Owner-occupied property is property held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative 
purposes. 

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential that 
are associated with the investment property will flow to the Group, and the cost or fair value of the investment property can 
be measured reliably. 

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. 

Where investment property is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at the date of 

acquisition. 

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. 
If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced 
part is derecognised. 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Registration number (Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003)) 
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

Investment property (continued) 

Fair value 

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. 

The fair value of investment property reflects market conditions at the reporting date. 

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net surplus or deficit for the period in which it arises. 

If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property under construction is not reliably determinable but 
expects the fair value of the property to be reliably measurable when construction is complete, it measures that investment 
property under construction at cost until either its fair value becomes reliably determinable or construction is completed 
(whichever is earlier). If the entity determines that the fair value of an investment property (other than an investment 
property under construction) is not reliably determinable on a continuing basis, the entity measure that investment property 
using the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment). The residual value of the investment 
property is then assumed to be zero. The entity apply the cost model (as per the accounting policy on Property, plant and 
equipment) until disposal of the investment property. 

Once the entity becomes able to measure reliably the fair value of an investment property under construction that has 
previously been measured at cost, it measures that property at its fair value. Once construction of that property is complete, 
it is presumed that fair value can be measured reliably. If this is not the case, the property is accounted for using the cost 
model in accordance with the accounting policy on Property, plant and equipment. 

Cost model 

Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated residual value by equal installments over the useful life of 
the property, which is as follows: 

Item Useful life 
Property - buildings 4 to 50 years 

Investment property is de recognised on disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its disposal. 

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of investment property is the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of retirement or disposal. 

1.4 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used 
during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 
municipality; and 
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through cr non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost) . If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
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NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Registration number (Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003)) 
Consolidated Ann~al Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.4 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is de recognised. · 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 
obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable otoperating in the manner intended by management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in 
property, plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with 
an item of property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet 
the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any 
remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. 

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued , any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 
restated proportionately with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset 
after revaluation equals its revalued amount. 

When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset. 

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The 
increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in surplus or deficit. 

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained 
earnings when the asset is derecognised. 

The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained 
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the 
revalued carrying amount and depreciation based on the original cost ·of the asset. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with 
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair 
value at the end of the reporting period. 

Any increase in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The 
increase is recognised in surplus. or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously 
recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Any decrease in an asset's carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in surplus or deficit in the current 
period. The decrease is debited in revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus 
in respect of that asset. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 
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Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Item 
Land 
Buildings and infrastructure 
Office furniture 
Motor vehicles 
Office equipment 
Computer equipment 
Finance lease assets 
Firearms 
Leasehold improvements 

1.5 Financial instruments 

Classification 

Average useful life 
Indefinite 
4 to 50 years 
3 to 10 years 
3 to 7 years 
3 to 5 years 
3 to 5 years 
Over the lease agreement term 
10 years 
4-50 years 

The Group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 
Financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit- held for trading 
Loans and receivables 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained I incurred and takes place at initial 
recognition . Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated as at 
fair value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category. 

A financial asset classified as available-for-sale that would have met the definition of loans and receivables may be 
reclassified to loans and receivables if the entity has the intention and ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity. · 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 

Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses 
arising from changes in fair value being included in surplus or deficit for the period. 

Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit dividends and interest. 

Dividend income is recognised in surplus or deficit as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payment is 
established. 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. This excludes equity investments for which a 
fair value is not determinable, which are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in equity until the asset is disposed of or determined to 
be impaired. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in 
surplus or deficit as part of other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in 
surplus or deficit as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payment is established. 

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets denominated in a foreign currency are analysed between 
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost and other changes in the carrying amount. Translation 
differences on monetary items are recognised in surplus or deficit, while translation differences on non-monetary items are 
recognised in equity. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 

Fair value determination 

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and 
for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent 
arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, 
and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or 
deficit when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days 
overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the 
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future .cash flows discounted at the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is 
recognised in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it Is written off against 
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 
operating expenses in surplus or deficit. . 

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments 
that are readi ly convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. These 
are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value. 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement 
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the Group's accounting 
policy for borrowing costs. 
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised where: 

the rights· to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in 
fu ll without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; or 
the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either 

has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent 
of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Group could be required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or 
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or simi lar provision) on the transferred asset, the 
extent of the Group's continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, 
except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or simi lar provision) on an asset measured 
at fair value, the extent of the Group's continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred 
asset and the option exercise price. 

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in surplus 
or deficit. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group assesses at each statement of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. 

Assets are carried at amortised cost. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's 
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition) . The carrying amount of the 
asset shall be reduced either dir,ectly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be 
recognised in surplus or deficit. The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for 
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financia l asset, 
whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that 
group of financia l assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assess.ed for impairment and 
for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

1.6 Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in 
respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. 
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1.6 Tax (continued) 

c -urrent tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to 
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. - · 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable "temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability 
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither 
accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss). 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
surplus will be avai lable against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not 
recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither accounting surplus nor taxable profit (tax loss). 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, bas·ed on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period. 

Tax expenses 

Current and deferred taxes.are recognised as income or an expense and included in surplus or deficit for the period, except 
to the extent that the tax arises from: 

a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to net assets; or 
a business combination. 

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to net assets if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged , 
in the same or a different period , to net assets. 

1.7 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers .substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease 
- is classified ·as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to own,ership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings el!;lments, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabi lity to 
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the 
lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding.liability. The 
finance charge is allocate9 to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic Fate of on the 
remaining balance of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term . The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset 
or liability. 
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1.8 Inventories 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction , then 
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all 
inventories having a simi lar nature and use to the Group. 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which 
the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are 
distributed, or related services are rendered . The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current 
replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. 
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current 
replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the reversal occurs . 

1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the Group with the primary objective of generating a commercia l return. 
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a 
commercial return . 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic 
recognition of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon . . 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a 
commercial return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from 
other assets or groups of assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income 
tax expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the Group; or 
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Group. 

Criteria developed by the Group to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow: 

1.10 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered , such as paid 
vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in 
which the service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 
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1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 

Other post retirement obligations 

The entity provides post-retirement health care benefits, housing subsidies and gratuities upon retirement to some retirees 

The entitlement to post-retirement health care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age 
and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of 
employment. Independent qualified actuaries carry out valuations of these obligations. The entity also provides a gratuity 
and housing subsidy on retirement to certain employees. An annual charge to income is made to cover both these 
liabilities. 

1.11 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation . 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Group 
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 
does not exceed the amount of the provision . 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it 
is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required , to 
settle the obligation. 

Where· discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increase~ in each period to reflect t~e passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally' recognised. , 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a p~ovision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
• • has a detailed formal plan for the'restructuring, identifying at least: 

the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned ; 
the principal locations affected; 
the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 

terminated; 
the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
when the plan will be implemented; and . 

has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restru9turing provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
not associated with the ongoing activities of the Group 
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Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the Group is committed to the sale or 
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are 
subsequently measured at the higher of: 

the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 41 . 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for 
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified 
terms of a debt instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

The Group recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the obligation can be made. 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requ ires judgement. Indications 
that an outflow of resources may be probable are: 

financial difficulty of the debtor; 
defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 

.• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the 
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and 
a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact 
on the ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by the Group for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan 
commitments, it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting 
date. Where a fee is charged and the Group considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an Group 
recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets; and 
the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in 
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 

1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result 
in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled , between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm's length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates. 
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1.12 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
the Group has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 
the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Group; and 
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome 
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; · 
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
Group; 
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a 
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there ls evidence that some other method better represents the 
stage of completion. When a specific act is. much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is 
postponed until the significant act is executed . 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of 
completion is determined by . 

1.13Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 
embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service 
potential must be returned to the transferor. 

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can 
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in 
exchange. 

Fines are economic benefits or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law 
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations. 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the 
extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability In respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction. 
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1.13 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the 
entity. ' 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a 
liability. Where a liability is required to be recogn ised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to 
settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 
When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the 
reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue. 

1.141nvestment income 

Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

1.15Borrowing costs 

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when , there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link the 
borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.16Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 
expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with 
the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, 
and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.17Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of 
the expense, and where recovered , it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.181rregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA 
requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure 
register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial 
statements. 
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1.18 Irregular expenditure (continued) 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception 
of updating the-note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, 
the register and the 9isclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned . 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for 
the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the 
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant 
note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular 
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 
in the irregular expenditure register. 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Public Finance Management Act and the Public Office Bearers 
Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the Group's supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure 
excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial 
Performance and where recovered , it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial 
Performance. 

1.19 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Standards of GRAP requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to· exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting -
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are 
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of the financial statements. 
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions they may undertake in 
the future, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

1.20 Presentation of currency 

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand. 

1.21 Revaluation reserve 

The surplus arising from the revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to a non-distributable reserve. The 
revaluation surplus is realised as revalued buildings are depreciated, through a transfer from the revaluation reserve to the 
accumulated surplus/deficit. On disposal, the net revaluation surplus is transferred to the accumulated surplus/deficit while 
gains or losses on disposal, based on revalued amounts, are credited or charged to the statement of financial performance. 

1.22 Investments 

Where the carrying amount of an investment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, it is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount a·nd an impairment loss is charg·ed to the statement of financial performance. 
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1.23 Conditional grants and receipts 

Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity · 
has complied with any of the criteria , conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, 
conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised. 
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2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

The Group has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the 
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2013 or later periods: ' 

Standard/Interpretation: 

.. 

GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 
GRAP 25: Employee benefits 
GRAP 105: Transfers offunctions between entities under 
common control 
GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not 
under common control 
GRAP 107: Mergers 
GRAP 20: Related parties 
IGRAP 11 : Consolidation - Special purpose entities 
IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities- Non-monetary 
contributions by ventures 
GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements 
GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in Associates 
GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures 
GRAP 1 (as revised 2012): Presentation of Financial 
Statements 
GRAP 3 (as revised 2012): Accounting Policies, Change in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors 
GRAP 7 (as revised 2012): Investments in· Associates 
GRAP 9 (as revised 2012): Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions 
GRAP 12 (as revised 2012): Inventories 
GRAP 13 (as revised 2012): Leases 
GRAP 16 (as revised 2012): Investment Property 
GRAP 17 (as revised 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment 
GRAP 27 (as revised 2012): Agriculture (Replaces GRAP 
101) 
GRAP 31 (as revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces 
GRAP 102) 
IGRAP16: Intangible assets website costs 
IGRAP1 (as revised 2012):Applying the probability test on 
initial recognition of revenue 01 April 2013 
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Effective date: 
Years beginning on or 
after 
01 April2013 
01 April 2013 
01 April 2014 

01 April 2014 

01 April 2014 
01 April 2013 
01 April 2014 
01 April2014 

01 April 2014 

01 April 2014 
01 Apri l 2014 
01 April 2013 

01 April2013 

01 April 2013 
01 April 2013 

01 April2013 
01 April2013 
01 Apri l 2013 

01 April2013 
01 Apri l 2013 

01 April 2013 

01 Apri l 2013 

-



NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
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Grou 2013 2012 

Valuation Net Carrying value Valuation Net Carrying value 
movements movements 
during the during the 

ear ear 

Game 520 ,429,781 (17,237 ,965) 503,191,816 342,539,942 152,348,041 494,887,983 

NWPTB 2013 2012 

Valuation Net Carrying value Valuation Net Carrying value 
movements movements 
during the during the 

ear ear 

Game 520,429,781 (17,237,965) 503,191,816 342,539,942 152,348,041 494,887,983 

Reconciliation of game Group - 2013 

Opening Additlons Opening Disposals Gains or Gains or Game to 
- be 

balance current losses arising losses arising sold in the 
portion from changes from changes next financi 

in price in physical year 
quantities 

Game 494,887 ,983 10,303,018 23,702,030 (8,463,250) (39,045,407) 35,667,692 (13,860,250) 

Reconciliation of game - Group - 2012 

Opening Additions Disposals Gains or Gains or Game to be Total 
balance losses arising losses arising sold during 

from changes from changes the next 
in fair value in fair value financial year 

(price (physical 
changes) changes) 

Game 370,117,939 774,630 (28,352,627) 109,935,455 66,114,615 (23,702,029) 494,887,983 

Reconciliation of game - NWPTB - 2013 

Opening Additions Opening Disposals Gains or Gains or Game to 
be 

balance current losses arising losses arising sold 
during 

portion from changes from changes the next 
in fair value in fair value financial 

year 
(price (physical 

changes) changes) 
Game 494,887,983 10,303,018 23,702,030 (8,463,250) (39,045,407) 35,667,692 (13,860,250) 
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3. Game (continued) 
Reconciliation of game- NWPTB- 2012 

Opening Additions Disposals Gains or Gains or Game to be Total 
balance losses arising losses arising sold during 

from changes from changes the next 
in fair value in fair value financial year 

(price (physical 
changes) changes) 

Game 370,117,939 774,630 (28,352,627) 109,935,455 66,114,615 (23,702,029) 494,887,983 

/ 
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3. Game -Biological assets (continued) 

2013 2012 

Species Quantity Market value Board's valuation Quantity Market value Board's valuation 

Black Rhino 121 31 535 625 18 921 375 142 37 008 750 22 205 250 
Black Wi ldebeest 2 764 6 058 688 3 635 213 2 659 7 897 230 4 738 338 
Blesbuck 2146 2 630 996 1 578 598 1 835 2 058 870 1 235 322 
Blue Wildebeest 5 457 11 765 292 7 059 175 4 058 11 796 606 7 077 964 
Buffalo 1 234 552 207 596 331 324 558 1 125 574 003 125 344 401 875 
Eland 1 482 8 110 986 4 866 592 1 410 9 462 510 5 677 506 
Elephant 1 110 11 100 000 6 660 000 983 9 830 000 5 898 000 
Gemsbuck 2 129 10346940 6 208 164 2 225 10978150 6 586 890 
Giraffe . 461 7 227 558 4 336 535 454 6 440 898 3 864 539 
Hippo 79 2 725 500 1 635 300 65 3 128 125 1 876 875 
Impala 7 991 8 965 902 5379541 7 874 9 133 840 5 480 304 
Kudu 1 780 7 340 720 4 404 432 1 663 8 463 007 5 077 804 
Lion 90 4 140 000 2 484 000 108 6 914 700 4 148 820 
Nyala 44 338 184 202 910 30 204 270 122 562 
Ostrich 574 995 890. 597 534 526 1 377 594 826 556 
Red Hartebeest 2 673 10 232 244 6 139 346 2437 10513218 6 307 931 
Roan 3 670 950 402 570 3 324 657 194 794 
Sable 106 18 880 826 11 328 496 90 13 690 980 8 214 588 
Springbok 2 303 3 340 202 2 004 121 2 504 3 485 568 2 091 341 
Tsetse be 85 1 216 945 730 167 75 887 400 532 440 
Waterbuck 922 3 974 742 2 384 845 669 3 431 970 2 059 182 
White Rhino 592 137 229 744 82 337 846 562 112 284 228 67 370 537 
Wi ld dog 40 60 000 36 000 31 46 500 27 900 
Zebra 4 847 20 657 914 12 394 748 4 342 20 954 492 12 572 695 

Total value 861 753 444 517 052 067 864 316 688 

Cheetah, leopard, warthog, bushbuck, duiker, bush pig , klipspringer, common and mountain reedbuck, Reebok, steenbok, 
caracal , serval, brown and spotted hyena, jackal, baboon, vervet monkey and game birds have not be~n included in the 
above valuation . These animals are not included due to their elusive nature and I or their low monetary va lues. 

518590013 

Market values are determined based on avera1:Je auction prices realised during the current financia l year. Compared to the 
previous year, market values decreased for most game species and this is evident in the lower market va lues for Buffalo. 
The market va lues for, roan, sable and tsessebe increased from that of the prior year. The market valuation of especially 
White Rhino has increased slightly from the prior year and that of Black Rhino has shown no change as there has been 
little to no demand for these on the active market. The minimal increase in th·e quantities along with the decreases in 
market values of most game species have resulted in a slight decrease in the Board's Revaluation Reserve of R 11 840 965 
compared to an increase of R 148 260 327 in the prior year. The overall decrease in market va lues has resulted in a 
decrease in Game assets of 0.3% and a decrease in the Revaluation Reserve of 2.4%. 

In the absence of a GRAP accounting standard on wildlife, the North West Parks and Tourism Board obtained an entity 
specific accounting policy approval from National Treasury. The physical verification is performed by a team of four 
members (2 counters, a data processor and a pilot) by flying over the park/reserve and performs physical identification and 
counting within 500 meter strips. This process is repeated in smaller parks and triplicated in bigger parks to eliminate 
variances. Information relating to very important species (VIS) is compared to the day to day management monitoring 
information before a final report is submitted . 
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4. Property, plant and equipment (Owned) 

Grou 2013 2012 

Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value 
Depreciation depreciation 

And and 
Accumulated accumulated 
Impairment impairment 

Land 8 900 000 - 8 900 000 8 900 000 - 8 900 000 
Buildings 2oo:481;874 (21 ,351 ,606) 179:526:437 200:423:294 (16,184,315) 184:238:979 
Furniture and fixtures 33,513,793 (14,587,905) 18,500,520 23,522,911 (11 ,194,114) 12,328,797 
Motor vehicles 24,072,602 (16,455,636) 7,616,966 18,681 ,030 (13,578,644) 5,102,386 
Computer equipment 3,631 ,214 (2, 174,972) 1,456,242 3,286,709 (1 ,760 ,596) 1,526,113 
Leasehold improvements 7,940,517 (2,812,744) 5,127,773 7,726,539 (2,658,213) 5,068,326 
Game parks, properties and 562,695,911 (394,413,863) 168,282,048 547,736,182 (372,024,495) 175,711,687 
infrastructure 
Leasehold improvements 3,482,371 (3,069,855) 412,516 3,482,371 (2,266,098) . 1,216,273 

Total 844,718,282 (454,866,581 ) 389,851,701 813,759,036 (419!666,475) 394,092,561 

NWPTB 2013 2012 

Cost Accumulated Carrying value Cost Accumulated Carrying value 
Depreciation depreciation 

And and 
Accumulated accumulated 
Impairment impairment 

Land 8 900 000 4~ :82~:~8~ 8 900 000 8 900 000 
Buildings 48:172:914 (6,120,712) 48:114:334 (5,157,312) 42:957:022 
Furniture and fixtures 22,779,669 (12,071 ,176) 10,708,493 18,324,975 (9,029,144) 9,295,831 
Motor vehicles 23,271 ,104 (16,343,658) 6,927,446 17,879,532 (13,626,967) 4,252,565 
Computer equipment 3,606,126 (2,215,081) 1,391,045 3,261 ,621 (1 ,807,210) 1,454,411 
Game parks, properties and 562,695,911 (394,413,863) 168,282,048 547,736,182 (372,024,495) 175,711,687 
infrastructure 
Leasehold improvements 3,482,371 (3,069,855) 412,516 3,482,371 (2,266,098) 1,216,273 

Total 672,908,095 ! 434,234,345) 238!673!750 647,699,015 (403,911,226) 243,787,789 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment- Group- 2013 

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
balance 

Land 8,900,000 8,900,000 
Buildings 184,238,979 58,580 (5, 167,291) 179,526,437 
Furniture and fixtures 12,328,797 10,139,495 (3,542,404) 18,500,520 
Motor vehicles 5,102,386 5,502,402 (65,970) (2,921 ,852) 7,616,966 
Computer equipment 1,526,113 393,967 (16,758) (447 ,080) 1,456,242 
Leasehold improvements 5,068,326 213,977 (154,530) 5,127,773 
Game parks, properties and infrastructure 175,711,687 14,959,729 (32,295) (22,357,073) 168,282,048 
Leasehold improvements 1,216,273 (803,757) 412,516 

394!092,561 31,268,150 (115,023) (35,393!987) 389,851,701 

59 -



-

NORTH WEST PARKS AND TOURISM BOARD 
(Incorporated by Act 3 of 1997,as amended in 2003) 

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
Grou NWPTB 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

4. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment- NWPTB- 2012 

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
balance 

Land 8,900,000 8,900,000 
Buildings 188,541 ,205 71 ,378 (4,373,604) 184,238,979 
Furniture and fixtures 14,013,380 2,107,409 (105,243) (3,686,749) 12,328,797 
Motor vehicles 6,996,362 486,843 (2,380,819) 5,102,386 
Computer equipment 1,453,877 549,091 (34 ,824) (442,031) 1,526,113 
Leasehold improvements 5,222,856 (154,530) 5,068,326 
Infrastructure 196,044,927 2,656,678 (22,989,918) 175,711 ,687 
Leasehold improvements 1,686,896 368,288 (838,911) 1,216,273 

422,859,503 6,239,687 (140,067) (34,866,562) 394,092,561 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - NWPTB- 2013 

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
balance 

Land 8,900,000 8,900,000 
Buildings 42,957,022 58,580 (963,400) 42,052,202 
Furniture and fixtures 9,295,831 4,480 ,601 (9,101) (3,058,838) 10,708,493 
Motor vehicles 4,252,565 5,502,402 (65,970) (2,761,551) 6,927,446 
Computer equipment 1,454,41 1 393,967 (16,758) (440,575) 1,391,045 
Game parks, properties and infrastructure 175,711 ,687 14,959,729 (22,389,368) 168,282,048 
Leasehold improvements 1,216,273 (803,757) 412,516 

243,787' 789 25,395,279 (91,829) (30,417,489) 238,673,750 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment- NWPTB- 2012 

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
balance 

Land 8,900,000 8,900,000 
Buildings 43,847,693 71 ,378 (962,049) 42,957,022 
Furniture and fixtures 9,831 ,335 1,987,438 (105,243) (2,417,699) 9,295 ,831 
Motor vehicles 6,194,863 486,843 (2,429,141) 4,252,565 
Computer equipment 1,427,230 542,698 (34,824) (480,693) 1,454,411 
Game parks properties and infrrastructure 196,044,927 2,656,678 (22,989,918) 175,711,687 
Leasehold improvements 1,686,896 368,288 (838,911) 1,216,273 

267,932,944 6,113,323 (140,067) (30,118,411) 243,787,789 

Details of properties 

A schedule of land and buildings is available for inspection at the registered office of the North West Parks and Tourism 
Board. Certain land, game parks, properties and infrastructure represent buildings erected on tribal land over which the 
Board intends securing leasehold title. 
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4. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Details of properties (continued) 

A revalualion of all fixed properties with in the Board was performed during the end of the 2008 financial year in order to 
determine their market va lue. Executive Appraisers were appointed to perform the valuation. The valuations were 
completed on April 30, 2008. Most of the immovable property valued now form part of the land and buildings reflected in 
the financial statements, however, due to the ownership of the land on which these immovable properties are situated 
attempts are being made to have the land vested with the Board . A change in accounting policy is required to account for 
these assets in the Board's financial records at the value as determined by the revaluation process. This change in 
accounting policy has been effected during the 2008/2009 financial year. Land , game parks, properties and infrastructure 
were brought into account for the first time during the 2008/2009 financia l year using the valuations concluded at the end of 
April 2008. It is impracticable to restate the comparative depreciation values for the prior periods and therefore the opening 
balances as at 01 Apri l 2008 have been restated. · 

The va luation report concluded that the present estimated value is R 140 891 400 while the estimated replacement value is 
R 292 269 600. The properties referred to are held for use as business operations and includes the Mafikeng and Ga 
Rankuwa Hotel Schools held for both business operations as well as training institutions, in the supply of goods and 
services within the hospitality activities of the North West Parks and Tourism Board. These valuations have not resulted in 
any impairment losses to be recognised as an expense in the current 2012/2013 financial year. 

All insurance claims relating to the prior financial years and most of the current financia l year's claims were settled during 
2012/2013. ' 

The North West Parks and Tourism Board has user rights over 208 760 ha within 15 parks and reserves situated in the 
North West Province. Presently the Board does not have any land ownership over these parks and reserves, but ownership 
is vested with the Provincial and National Departments of Public Works as well as municipalities or communities. In some 
instances land claims have been registered over certain areas of the parks and reserves. Communities were also awarded 
ownership in certain parks and reserves with the purpose of co-management. Due to this uncertainty no additions or 
adjustments to land values were made within the financial statements 

5, Goodwill 

Grou 

Goodwill 

Cost/ 
Valuation 

3 626 537 

Reconciliation of goodwill· NWPTB • 2013 

Goodwill 

Reconciliation of goodwill- NWPTB • 2012 

Goodwill 

2013 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

3 626 537 
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Cost I 
Valuation 

3 626 537 

2012 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

Opening 
balance 
3 626 537 

Opening 
balance 
3 626 537 

3 626 537 

Total 

3 626 537 

Total 

3 626 537 
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6. Investments in controlled entities 

Name of company 

Kgama Wildlife Operations (SOE) Ltd 
Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd 
Loan to Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd 

Held by 

Interest charged : Loan to Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd 
Impairment: Loan to Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd 

Grou 

2013 2012 

% % 
holding holding 

2013 2012 
100.00 % 100.00 % 
100.00% 100.00% 
100.00 % 100.00% 
100.00% 100.00% 
100.00 % 100.00 % 

NWPTB 

2013 2012 

Carrying Carrying 
amount 2013 amount 2012 

1,260,837 1,260,837 
100 100 

23,241,791 22,891,805 
204,845 349,986 

(23,446,636) 

1,260,937 24,502,728 

Unsecured Interest free loan, except for the portion of R 10,3 million funded by the loan from DBSA, which shall bear 
interest with effect from 1 April2003 at the rate charged by DBSA. During the 2007/2008 year the Board of Directors took a 
resolution to write off fifty percent of the Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd loan and subsequently reduce the balance on an annual basis 
as the NWPTB loan from DBSA is repaid. The directors have reviewed the recoverability of the inter-company loan with 
Dirapeng (SOE) Ltd taking into account this subsidiary's continuing financial difficulties, and have decided to impair the loan 
and provide for it as its recoverability is considered extremely doubtful. 

7. Investments in associates 

Name of entity 

Pilanesberg Resorts 
(Proprietary) Limited 

Listed I 
Unlisted 

Movements in carrying value 

Opening balance 

% 
holding 

2013 
50.00% 

% Carrying Carrying 
holding amount 2013 amount 2012 

2012 
50.00% 

57,681,080 57,681,080 

The carrying amounts of associates are shown ·net of impairment losses. 

8. Loans to (from) shareholders 

Loan from Timeshare Sales 
This loan is unsecured, interest free with no fixed term 
of repayment . 
Loan to Game Investment Holdings(Pty) Ltd 
Loan from Game Investment Holdings(Pty) Ltd 
This loan is unsecured bearing interest at 9% with no 
fixed t~rm of repayment 
Loan from Bagatla Shareblock Company 
This loan is unsecured, interest free with no fixed terms 
of repayment 
Loan from Manyane Shareblock Company 
This loan is unsecured, interest free with no fixed terms 
of repayment 
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(1 ,500,000) 

1,260,332 
(2,200,000) 

(3,901 ,463) 

(6,212,019) 

(12,553, 150) 

(1,500,000) 

1,156,268 
(2,200,000) 

(2,561 ,463) 

(4,559,849) 

(9,665,044) 

Fair value 
2013 

57,681,080 

Fair value 
2012 

57,681 ,080 
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9. Other receivables - SARS 

At amortised cost 
VAT refundable 2}80,438 2,780,438 2,780,438 2,780,438 
The amount receivable is as a result of VAT refunds due to 
the North West Parks and Tourism Board by the South 
African Revenue Services. The Board was deregistered for 
VAT at the end of March 2006 and the refund due is as a 
result of the final audit conducted by SARS in January 
2007. This amount has been provided as doubtful for 
recovery as it has been outstanding for more than 3 years . 
Further steps to recover this debt has been implemented 
during May 2013. 

Non-current assets 
At amortised cost 2.780.438 2.780,438 2,780.438 2.780,438 

10. Deferred tax 

Deferred tax liability 

Temporary differences on tangible assets and doubtful (3, 167 ,496) (3,506,685) 
debts 

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (liability) 

At beginning of the year (3,506,685) (299,063) 
Originating temporary difference on tangible fixecf (1 '126,082) (3,207,622) 
assets 
Originatin!l temporary difference on doubtful debts 1,465,271 

• 
(3, 167,496) (3,506,685) 

11. Inventories 

Game to be sold during next financiql year 13,860,250 23,702,029 13,860 ,250 23,702,029 
Consumable stores 1,333,798 1,392,596 430,689 407,413 

15,194,048 25,094,625 14,290,939 24,109,442 

12. Trade receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables - unsecured 22,670,183 23,507,329 10,881 ,311 21,234,512 

The above receivables and prepayments are expected to be realised within the next financial year, and certain categories of 
accounts receivable bear interest at rates ranging between 10% and prime rate. 

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair va lue. 

Credit quality of trade and other receivables 

The credit rating used to rate the credit quality in categories of high , medium and low quality debtors is based on the 
debtors payment history. The ageing analysis is used to determine the credit rating. Debtors aged as current and 1-30 
days are rated as high quality debtors, those aged 31-60 days are rated medium qualfty debtors and those debtors aged 
over 60 days are rated low quality debtors. Trade and other debtors comprise a widespread customer base and the Board 
performs ongoing credit evaluations of the recoverability of these debts. There is no significant credit risk attached to these 
debtors that has not been provided for as doubtful. 
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12. Trade receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Trade receivables 

Ageing 

Current (0 -30 days) 

31 - 60 days 2,374,412 8,716,691 -3,727,619 7,257,753 

61-90 days 5,340,977 3,952,041 3,126,686 -261,151 

90 days+ 14,954,794 10,838,597 11,482,244 14,237,910 

22,670,183 23,507,329 10,881,311 21,234,512 

The credit rating is as follows 
High 26,065,666 31 ,106,477 32,931,363 15,731,790 
Medium 5,034!409 5,429,753 
Low 7,257,573 

26 065 666 31 106 477 37 965 772 28 419 116 

Trade and other receivables impaired 

As of 31 March 2013 , trade and other receivables of R (26,779,803) (2012: R (16,483,423)) were impaired and provided for. 

The amount of the provision was R (26,779,803) as of 31 March 2013 (2012: R (16,843,423)). 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables 

Opening balance 16,483,423 21,742,343 . 16,483,423 21,742,343 
Provision for impairment 7,454 ,773 5,927,547 7,514 ,942 5,927,547 
Amounts written off as uncollectible (11 '186,467) (11 '186,467) 
Other 2,841 ,607 

26,779,803 16,483,423 23,998,365 16,483,423 

Management is of the opinion that all receivables outstanding over 90 days are not recoverable and therefore the 
appropriate allowances for the estimated irrecoverable amounts are provided for as doubtful receivables. The provision for 
doubtful debt has also been determined by reference to past experience as well as actual review of all individual debtors 
accounts and excludes special payment arrangements entered into with specific debtors. 
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13. R~ceivables from non-exchange transactions 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 272,584 2,885,729 271 ,751 369,943 

14. VAT receivable 

VAT 9,716 

15. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 60,854 51 ,018 35,550 34,550 
Bank balances 5,,009,892 14,099,766 2,560,572 3,686,953 
Short-term investments 40,099,524 98,137,494 36,723 ,616 82,002,410 
Bank overdraft (1,400,120) (1 ,786,121) 

43 770 150 110502157 39 319 738 85723913 

Current assets 45,170,270 112,288,278 39,319,738 85,723,913 
Current liabilities (1 ,400,120) (1 ,786,121) 

43 770 150 110 502157 39 319 738 85 723 913 

The short term investments have maturity periods of less than 6 months, and bear interest at rates ranging from 1,25% to 
5% per annum. 

Bank balances and cash comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions 
with maturities of six months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk. The carrying amount of these 
assets approximates to their fair value. As required in section 7(2) and 7(3) of the Public Finance Management Act, 
Treasury has approved the i?cal banks where the bank accounts are held . 

16. Game Revaluation reserve 

Opening balance 
Change during the year 

488,925,166 341 ,227,721 
(11 ,840,965} 147,697,445 

488,925,166 341,227,721 
(11 ,840,965) 147,697,445 

477 084 201 488,925,166 477,084,201 488,925,166 

Increases/( decreases) in the carrying value of game as a result of the periodic valuations are credited/( debited} to the 
revaluation reserve. 

17. Fair value adjustment assets-available-for-sale reserve 

The fair value adjustment assets available-for-sale reserve comprises all fair value adjustments on available-for-sale 
financial instruments. When an asset or liability is derecognfsed, the fair value adjustments relating to that asset .or liability 
is transferred to surplus or deficit. 

Available-for-sale financial instruments 13,593,292 13,388,575 
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18. Finance lease obligation 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 403,928 923,174 403,928 923,174 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 80,481 484,408 80,481 484,408 

Present value of minimum lease payments 484,409 1,407,582 484,409 1,407,582 

Non-current liabi lities 80,480 484,408 80,480 484,408 
Current liabilities 403,928 923,174 403,928 923,174 

484 408 1,407,582 484,408 1,407,582 

The finance leases mentioned above include equipment leased. The rental payable on these leases is escalated at rates of 
up to 10% per annum. The Board wi ll not exercise any options to renew or purchase the assets under finance leases. 
There are no restrictions imposed on the above finance leases. 

19. Unspent conditional grants 

Unspent conditional grants 

Unspent conditional grants 
Pilanesberg Infrastructure Project Fund 
Social Responsibility Fund 
Provincial Capital Development Fund 
Park Expansion Project Fund 
Hotels Schools Repairs and Maintanance Fund 
2010 Tourism Promotion Project Fund 
Pilanesburg Roads Project Fund 
Park Fencing Project Fund 
Alien Plant Control Fund 

Movement during the year 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Additions during the year 
Income recognition during the year 

3,540,857 
4,243,790 
1,086,428 
1,479,534 

600,159 
3,888 

704,805 
3,130,595 

759,724 

15 549 780 

26,977,908 
9,098,644 

(20,526,772) 

15 549 780 

5,500,000 
5,687,117 
1,086,428 
3,155,182 
1,304,848 

3,888 
3,440,445 
6,300,000 

500,000 

26,977,908 

17,765,251 
16,303,121 
(7,090,464) 

26,977,908 

3,540,857 
4,243,790 
1,086,428 
1,479,534 

600,159 
3,888 

704,805 
3,130,595 

759,724 

15,549,780 

26,977;908 
9,098,644 

(20,526,772) 

15,549,780 

,5,500,000 
5,687,117 
1,086,428 
3,155,182 
1,304,848 

3,888 
3,440,445 
6,300,000 

500,000 

26,977,908 

17,765,251 
16,303,121 
(7,090,464) 

26,977,908 

This liability represents amounts received through sponsorships and institutions earmarked for specific projects. This 
includes the Provincial Capital Development Fund and Social Responsibility contributions. The Board approved the use of 
the interest accrued on the funds for other Board operations with effect from 01 April 2004. The interest accrued on these 
funds have been transferred to the Revenue Reserve Fund. ·Interest on the Social Responsibility Fund is credited to that 
fund. 
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20. Provisions 

~econciliation of provisions- Group- 2013 

Environmental rehabilitation 
Long service awards 
Other provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions- Group- 2012 

Environmental rehabilitation 
Long service awards 
Other provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions - NWPTB - 2013 

Environmental rehabilitation 
Long service awards 

Reconciliation of provisions- NWPTB- 2012 

Environmental rehabilitation 
Long service awards 

Group 

2013 2012 

Opening 
Balance 

250,000 
154,000 

1,360,896 

1,764,896 

Opening 
Balance 

250,000 
154,000 

404,000 

Opening 
Balance 

250,000 
63,000 

313,000 

NWPTB 

2013 

Utilised 
duril)g the 

year 

(131 ,000) 
2,409 

(128,591) 

Opening 
Balance 

250,000 
154,000 

2;409 

406 409 

Utilised 
during the 

year 

(131 ,000) 

(131,000) 

Additions 

91 000 

91,000 

The provision for long service relates to the Board's estimated liabilities arising as a result of services rendered by 
employees. This provision is based on rates approved in the Board's policies. 

2012 

Total 

250,000 
23,000 

1,363,305 

1,636,305 

Total 

250,000 
154,000 

2,409 

406,409 

Total 

250,000 
23,000 

'273,000 

Total 

250,000 
154,000 

404,000 

The provision for rehabilitation of land fill sites relates to areas whers pollution has been identified within the smaller parks 
and these land areas would require rehabilitation in an attempt to restore the land to its former state. 

21. Interest bearing borrowings 

Loan from Development Bank of Southern Africa Limited (for Qirapeng I Pilanesberg), bearing interest at 11% per annum. 
Instalments are payable every six months over a period of 18 years. The final instalment will be payable on 30 September 
2013. 

The DBSA loans are secured by guarantees provided by the North West Provincial Government. 
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21. Interest bearing borrowings (continued) 

Previously the NWPTB entered into a loan agreement with Development Bank of Southern Africa Limited (for Madikwe 
Reserve), bearing interest at 10% per annum. Instalments were payable every six months over a period of 17 years. The 
final instalment was payable on 31 March 2020 however during the·prior 2011/2012 financial year the Board settled the 
balance owing to DBSA. 

22. Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables 
Other payables 

Trade payables 
Current (0 -30 days) 
31 - 60 days 
61 -90 days 
90 days+ 

23. Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange) 
Tax payable 

24. VAT payable 

VAT payable 

25. Revenue 

Sale of goods 
Rendering of services 
Game hunting fees 
Entrance fees 
Government grants 
Discount received 
Recoveries 
Other income 
Interest received - investment 
Government grants & subsidies 

The amount included in revenue arising from 
exchanges of goods or services are as follows: 
Sale of goods 

Rendering of services 
Construction contracts 
Royalty income 
Rental income 
Discount received 
Recoveries 
Other income 
Interest received - investment 
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19,371 ,961 
39,808,444 

59,180,405 

3,597 ,648 
1,077 ,692 

594,931 
14,100,552 

19 370 823 

2 519 678 

2,464,652 

68,667,564 
55,352,928 

9,654,829 
282,142 
213,582 
114,528 

21 ,746,661 
3,959,798 

148,022,539 

308,014,571 

68,667,564 

55,352 ,928 

9,654,829 
282,142 
213,582 
114,528 

21 ,746,661 
3,959,798 

159,992,032 

11 ,795,007 
29,193,915 

40,988,922 

6,567,154 
2,514,665 

68,867 
9,214,624 

11 804 723 

2 519 678 

3,286,062 

116,968,983 
55,600,050 
36,701 ,000 

3,017,542 
107,521 

10,409 
13,682 ,055 

3,604,370 
143,428,271 

373,120,201 

116,968,983 

55,600,050 
36 ,701 ,000 

3,017,542 
107,521 

10,409 
13,682,055 
3,604,370 

229,691,930 

11,394,382 
18,184,687 

29,579,069 

3,077,132 
596,821 
114,060 

7,606,369 
11 394 382 

56,454 ,071 
8,463,250 
9,654,829 

213,582 
114,528 
567,701 

3,456,559 
148,022,539 

226,947,059 

56,454,071 
8,463,250 
9,654,829 

213,582 
114,528 
567 ,701 

3,456,559 

78,924,520 

10,623,134 
16,258 ,897 

26,882,031 

2,539,832 
195,496 
68,867 

7,818,939 
10623134 

56,824,706 
65,053,627 

107,521 

1,872,933 
3,207,055 

143,428,271 

270,494,113 

56,824,706 
65,053,627 

107,521 

1,872,933 
3,207 ,055 

127,065,842 
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25. Revenue (continued) 

The amount included in revenue arising from non
exchange transactions is as follows: 

Grou 

2013 

NWPTB 

2012 2013 2012 

Government grants & subsidies 148,022,539 143,428,271 148,022,539 143,428,271 

Rendering of services is comprised of revenue generated from accommodation and camping , angling fees, filming income, 
firewood sales , hiking fees as well as sales from maps and books on the various parks and nature reserves. 

26. Cost of sales 

Sale of goods 
Cost of goods sold 

27. Government grants and subsidies 

Equitable share 
THETA Programmes 
DEDECT Programmes 
Conditional grants income 

28. Other operating Income 

Rental income 
Sundry income 
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20,499,097 

137,260,000 
663,895 

1,000,000 
9,098,644 

148,022,539 

132,396 
21 ,614,265 

21 746 661 

43,492,896 

126,328,000 
797,150 

16,303,121 

143,428,271 

149,640 
13,532,415 

13,682,055 

137,260,000 
663,895 

1,000,000 
9,098,644 

148,022,539 

132,396 
435,305 

567,701 

126,328,000 
797,150 

16,303,121 

143,428,271 

149,640 
1,723,293 

1,872,933 
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29. General expenses 

Accounting fees 2,455 571 ,047 
Advertising 1,093,001 1,181 ,198 800,453 593,284 
Assets expensed 250 ,263 197,785 250,263 197,785 
Auditors remuneration 8,771 ,398 3,418,410 3,035,723 2,661 ,887 
Bimk charges 936,914 629,988 502,593 446,032 
Bus Diesel 96,574 42,502 96,574 42,502 
Cleaning 2,487,343 3,248,731 1,489,759 1,174,164 
Commission paid 1,487,529 2,940,814 1,130,459 193,908 
Conditional grant expenses 499,430 745,144 499,430 745,144 
Conditional grant expenses 9,098,644 16,303,121 9,098,644 16,303 ,121 
Conferences and seminars 557,319 361 ,350 557,319 361 ,350 
Consulting and professional fees 3,872,493 4,711 ,729 2,004,131 2,342,226 
Consumables 1,549,027 966,347 944,374 646,843 
Del ivery expenses 133,138 154,062 73,911 76,562 
Discount allowed 149,841 134,600 149,841 134,600 
Donations 1,711 13,054 1,711 13,054 
Electricity 5,655,321 5,956,472 4,439,618 3,860,993 
Entertainment 26,879 35,429 6,836 ' 30,431 
Fines and penalties 205 
Fleet 5,050,301 2,761 ,186 5,050,301 2,761 ,186 
Flowers 2,418 10,180 
Game census 3,096,751 3,322,677 1,597,170 2,450,224 
Graduation ceremony 174,865 143,237 174,865 143,237 
Guest supplies 1,195,468 871 ,026 71 ,091 383,093 
Hire 13,435 144,965 
Horticulture 6,073,558 6,073,558 
IT expenses 2,400,558 322,914 
Incorporation costs 1,215,649 1,007,049 1,215,649 1,007,049 
Insurance 1,475,049 1,567,683 708,042 887,487 
Laundry 252,474 210,488 252,474 210,488 
Lease rentals on operating lease 3,223,140 3,756,801 2,134,264 2,397,276 
Levies 809,524 890,439 796,520 890,439 
Licence and membership fees 1,564,760 1,980,678 941,056 844,806 
Medical expenses 680 930 
Motor vehicle expenses 4,789,025 4,311 ,538 3,333,518 3,580,184 
Tourism expenses 55 ,852 
Other general expenses 8,934,504 6,660,096 2,898,111 4,334,342 
Pest control 155,951 132,062 19,320 
Placement fees 129,299 1,139,225 129,299 1,139,225 
Postage and courier 6,278 26,313 
Printing and stationery 1,848,771 2,102,054 1,394,79"1 1,662,775 
Productions 102,812 102,812 
Promotions and sponsorships 3,667,621 9,766,423 3,347,493 9,252,149 
Property only 10,002,139 5,927,546 10,002,139 5,927,546 
Recruitment 447,274 37,613 161 ,638 
Refuse 28,294 
Research and development costs 1,844,820 1,329,924 1,844,820 1,329,924 
Restructuring 9,736 42,716 
Royalties and license fees 141,105 188,032 
Sale of goods 20,499,097. 43,492,896 
Security 3,738,013 3,788,088 3,416,710 3,215,798 
Sewerage and waste disposal 75,903 209,356 
Show expenses 2,500,281 368,277 1,953,131 

Software expens.es 151,443 41 ,836 140,855 41,836 
Staff welfare 2,100,047 2,290,951 1,300,723 594,640 
Subscriptions and membership fees 1,631 ,790 952 ,936 1,510,302 918,387 
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29. General expenses (continued) 
Telephone and fax 4,445,210 3,795,853 2,800,200 2,684,063 
Theft 5,000 5,000 
Training 3,040,730 3,249,431 2,713,557 2,452,071 
Travel - local 10,501 ,219 11 ,059,673 9,037,486 9,416,638 
Travel - overseas 662,064 53,294 662,064 53,294 
Uniforms 801 ,679 1,002,038 595,689 879,493 
Water 825,402 328,701 

146,330,975 160,970,487 91,466,287 89,281,536 

-
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30. Employee related costs 
\ 

Basic 141 ,051 ,821 115,119,490 109,042,118 95,729,485 
Bonus 4,241,188 4,805,366 4,216,907 4,103,386 
Medical aid - company contributions 2,904,966 3,070,366 2,904,966 3,070,152 
UIF 832,853 725,400 784,987 699,827 
WCA 9,242 27,779 
SOL 1 '135,238 986,264 1 '110,586 986,264 
Leave pay provision charge 1,066 
Short term benefit 244,877 128,114 
Other short term costs 118,133 597,085 
Post-employment benefits - Pension - Defined · 4,837,741 3,423,417 2,820,986 2,685,098 
contribution plan 
Acting allowances 340,100 322 ,742 317,323 208,804 
Transport allowance 87,984 
Car allowance 2,681 ,043 3,202,360 2,681,043 3,202,360 
Housing benefits and allowances 43,741 70 ,364 
Induction 902,817 1,326,937 
Long-term benefits - incentive scheme 53,700 
Termination benefits 33,438 

159 466 248 133 859 384 123878916 110 685 376 

Remuneration of chief executive officer 

Annual Remuneration 1,011,847 1,001 ,169 1,011 ,847 1,001 '169 
Car Allowance 72,600 72,600 72,600 72,600 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 536,795 287,181 536,795 287,181 

1 621 242 1 360 950 1 621 242 1 360 950 

Remuneration of chief operations officer 

Annual Remuneration 188,695 641 ,220 188,695 641,220 
Car Allowance 15,429 61 ,716 15,429 61 ,716 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 184,291 204 ,364 184,291 204,364 

388 415 907 300 388 415 907 300 

Remuneration of chief finance officer 

Annual Remuneration 816,553 767,352 816,553 767,352 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 634,654 209,146 634,654 209,146 

1 451 207 976 498 1 451 207 976 498 

Remuneration of chief audit executive 

Annual Remuneration 478,383 432,659 478,383 432,659 
Car Allowance 50 ,940 46,695 50 ,940 46,695 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 244 ,595 159,792 244,595 159,792 

773 918 639 146 773 918 639 146 

Remuneration of chief business development officer 

Annual Remuneration 140,364 522,800 140,364 522,800 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 294,480 119,375. 294,480 119,375 

434,844 642,175 434,844 642,175 
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30. Employee related costs (continued) 

Remuneration of chief conservation officer 

Annual Remuneration 567,849 562,641 567,849 562,641 
Car Allowance 61,716 61 ,716 61 ,716 61,716 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 544,350 196,921 544,350 196,921 

1 173 915 821 278 1173 915 821 278 

Remuneration of Rector hotel school division 

Annual Remuneration 494,380 445,930 494,380 445,930 
Car Allowance 42,000 97 ,000 42,000 97,000 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 594,437 194,905 594,437 194,905 

1130 817 737 835 1.130817 737 835 

Remuneration of human resources manager 

Annual Remuneration 691 ,860 736,719 691 ,860 736,719 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 142,882 123,531 142,882 123,531 

834 742 860 250 834 742 860 250 

31. Administrative exp~nditure 

Administration and management fees - third party 718,294 9,100,028 

32. Debt impairment 

Debt impairment- Dirapeng loan 23,446,636 23,446,636 
Other debt impairment 9,345,373 1,544,287 

32 792 009 1 544 287 23 446 636 

33. Investment revenue 

Interest revenue 
Controlled entities 204,845 349,986 204,845 349,986 
Associates 104,064 
Bank 3,650,889 3,254,384 3,251,714 2,857,069 

3,959,798 3,604,370 3,456,559 3,207,055 

34. Depreciation and amortisation 

Property, plant and equipment 35,393,987 35,120,652 30,417,490 30,118,411 

35. Finance costs 

Non-current borrowings 624,991 (216,375) 205,641 491,200 

Trade and other payables 15,688 16,020 15,688 16,020 

Finance leases 94,787 142,057 94,787 142,057 

735,466 {58,298} 316,116 649,277 
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36. Taxation 

Major components of the tax (income) expense 

Current 
Local income tax- current period (428,937) 1,246,600 

Deferred 
Originating and reversing temporary differences (156,450) 

(428,937) 1,090,150 

37. Auditors' remuneration 

Fees 8,771 ,398 3,418,410 3,035,723 2,661,887 

38. Operating lease 

The Dirapeng group leases the Manyane and Bakgatla camps from the North West Parks and Tourism Board for a period 
of 45 years that commenced on April 01 , 2001 . No renewal option is provided for in the lease agreement. The leases carry 
no restrictions and both leases escalate at 10% per annum. Sub-leases exist between the Dirapeng group and the share 
block companies for the recovery of lease costs for the land. The recovery is based on the size of the land occupied by the 
time share chalets as a percentage of the total land leased from the North West Parks and Tourism Board. These lease 
charges are recovered on an annual basis from the timeshare companies, for the same period as the main lease between 
Golden Leopard Resorts' and the North West Parks and Tourism Board . However due to it being difficult to reliably estimate 
the future transfer of units to the share block companies future recoveries were not projected. 

The North West Parks and Tourism Board is currently operating several lease agreements for accommodation and game 
drive facil ities within its parks and reserves. These lease agreements are for periods up to 99 years and lease payments 
are charged based on different criteria, amongst these being turnover generated by the operators. These leases escalate 
at the Consumer Price Index (CPI) per annum. 

The North West Parks and Tourism Board is not able to disclose the required information as the lease payments receivable 
cannot be calculated on a straight line basis. Leases are operational over a long period and increases are based on CPI as 
well as turnover. The current method of accounting for concession fees receivable is therefore more representative of the 
lease agreements. · 

39. Cash (used in) generated from operations 

(Deficit) surplus (86 ,016, 11 0) 8,866,999 (61 ,554,858) 17,980,572 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 35,425,162 35,120,652 30,417,490 30,118,411 
Gain on sale of assets and liabilities 1,484,305 140,066 1,918,048 140,066 
Finance costs 94,787 142,057 94,787 142,057 
Debt impairment (4,634,204) ,. 1,544,287 (12,782,577) 
Movements in operating lease assets (6,987,081) (7 ,000) 
Movements in provisions 1,229,896 82,254 (131 ,000) 91,000 
Prior year adjustments (353,338) (39,854,069) 
Changes in working capital: 
Inventories 9,900,577 (300 ,345) 9,818,503 48,422 
Trade receivables from exchange transactions 837,146 16,511 ,907 10,353,201 (7,424,908) 
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 2,583,145 (2 ,855,729) 98,192 (546,798) 

Consumer debtors 4,634,204 (1 ,544,287) 12,782,577 
Payables from exchange transactions 18,191,483 (9,731 ,579) 2,697,038 (206,721) 

VAT (10,854) 
Unspent conditional grants 11,428,128 10,726,423 11 ,428,128 10,726,423 

{12,226,732) 18,841,636 5,139,529 51,068,524 
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40. Tax refunded (paid) 

Balance at beginning of the year 
Current tax for the year recognised in surplus or deficit 
Balance at end of the year 

41 . Contingent assets and liabilities 

Group 

2013 

60,115 
428,937 
(60,115) 

428,937 

2012 

(1 ,246,600) 
(60,115) 

(1,306,715) 

NWPTB 

2013 2012 

The Bakgatla Ba Kgafela Tribal Authority has registered a land claim regarding a large portion of the Pilanesberg National 
Park. Many assets of the North West Parks and Tourism Board and the group are situated on the land in question , 
including the group's timeshare development. During 2008 a settlement agreement was reached with the tribal authority. 
Land title on restored land is under the name of the claimant community, however, land use remains for conservation 
purposes under the custodianship and management of the North West Parks and Tourism Board. The Board is currently 
negotiating the co-management agreement with the Communal Property Associations representing the different 
communities within the parameters of the law. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no 
provision for any liability that might result has been made in the financial statements. 

Land claims have also been registered in Borakalalo National Park, Baberspan Bird Sanctuary, Highveld National Park and 
Madikwe Game Reserve of which the outcomes are uncertain. Many assets of the North West Parks and Tourism Board 
are situated on the land in question. Should this land be awarded to the claimants It could lead to significant repercussions 
for the Board. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no provision for any liability that 
might result has been made in the financial statements. 

During the 2007/2008 financial year settlement agreements were reached with the Barolong Boo-Modiboa (Ba Matlwang) 
Communal Property Association regarding land claims within the Highveld National Park and the Barokologadi Communal 
Property Association regarding land claims within the Madikwe Game Reserve, whereby the Land Claims Commission will 
make available restitution grants from the Commissions budget vote to settle the restoration or rights in the land claims. 
L:and title on restored land is under the name of the claimant community, however, land use remains for conservation 
purposes under the custodianship and management of the North West Parks and Tourism Board. The Board is currently 
negotiating the co-management agreement with the Communal Property Associations representing the different 
communities within the parameters of the law. The ultimate outcome of the matter cannot presently be determined and no 
provision for any liability that might result has been made In the financial statements. 

Discussions are underway whereby the Ga-Rankuwa Hotel School will be transferred to the Gauteng Provincial 
Government following the provincial re-demarcation process. The School will be transferred with the assets as well as their 
related costs. Current employees will also be transferred during this process. The hand over date cannot be specified. 
The fair market value of the property is estimated at R 9 800 000. 

During 2008 the NWPTB sponsored the amount of R 2 000 000 towards the hosting of the 2008 Woman's World Cup of 
Golf to be held in the North West Province. The T3 CC, which was the managing company responsible for the organisation 
and hosting of this event has been placed under liquidation and subsequently the event did not materialise. The NWPTB 
has registered as one of the creditors and is also pursuing other avenues to recover the sponsorship amount. No provision 
for this claim has been made in the financial statements and due the uncertainty regarding the matter the outcome thereof 
cannot presently be determined. The claim made is disclosed accordingly. 

The North West Parks and Tourism Board has instituted legal proceedings against Outdoor Life Communications (Pty) Ltd 
after their failure to comply with the advertising and broadcasting agreement. No provision for this claim has been made in 
the financial statements and due the uncertainty regarding the matter the outcome thereof cannot presently be determined. 
The claim made is disclosed accordingly at R85 000. 
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42. Related parties 

Relationships 
Accounting Officers 
NWPTB 

Controlled entities 
Associates 

Grou NWPTB 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

Refer to boards' report 
North West Province Department of Economic 
Development,Environment, Conservation and 
Tourism (DEDECT) 
Refer to note 6 

· Refer to note 7 

The North West Parks and Tourism Board is a public entity under schedule 3C of the Public Finance Management Act of 
1999 as amended, reporting to the North West Province Department of Economic Development, Environment, 
Conservation and Tourism (DEDECT). The Department and the MEC of the Department of Economic Development and 
Tourism exercise control over the Board and its financing and operating policies. The Board receives its grant fund ing to 
fund operations from the Department and renders hospitality services to the Department, via the Hotel Schools Division. 
The following transactions were carried out with the Department: ' 

Related party transactions 

Unconditional grants received 
Equitable share 

Infrastructure grants received 
Pilanesberg roads 
Hotel schools 
NWPTB 

Grants received for eradication of alien plants 
Taung and Vrede fort dome 

Other grants 
Grant received for forenci services rendered 
Hospitality and related services rendered to DEDECT 
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137,260,000 126,328,000 

2,500,000 
870,000 

6,300,000 

600,000 500,000 

1,000,000 
1,129,790 838,168 
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43. Directors' emoluments 

Non Executive 

2013 

Boemah D (Chairperson) 
Gaoretelelwe M 
Hlongwa JS (Deputy Chairperson) 
Dassie M R 
Khakhane-Lebballo T E 
Lebelo S M 
Maleka G 
Modise M R 
Mogadime J 
Mokgoko G 
Mopeloa T F 
Motlhabane N C 
Nke M S 
Nthebe B G 
Nyathi N J 
Sebeka T 
Sikwane T M 
Tsagae L 
Tyatya L 
Ncube MD 

201~ 

Boemah D (Chairperson) 
Gaoretelelwe llil 
Moroka T M 
Maleka G 
Modise M R 
Mogadime J 
Mokgoko G 
Ncobo S G 
Motlhabane N C 
Nke M S 
Seboka T 
Sikwane T M 
Tsagae L 
Tyatya L 
Ncube MD 

Allowances comprise travel allowance and other benefits 
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Emoluments Allowances Total 
80,654 36,393 117,047 
80,015 30,552 110,567 
48,597 43,359 91 ,956 
24,024 14,034 38,058 
15,036 7,581 22,617 
24,084 16,656 40,740 
42,956 48,666 91 ,622 

4,502 5,318 9,820 
30,892 29,164 60,056 
37,657 30,416 68,073 
22,576 20,949 43,525 
33,110 69,543 102,653 
48,212 30,682 78,894 
15,036 8,040 23,076 
19,560 17,546 37,106 
18,828 14,495 33,323 
39,896 23,662 63,558 
79,858 85,723 165,581 
10,534 5,470 16,004 
7,540 6,543 14,083 

683 567 544,792 1,228,359 

Emoluments Allowances Total 
31,624 15,290 46,914 
78,058 23,340 101 ,398 

6,032 9,323 15,355 
52,004 54,400 106,404 
11 ,288 8,876 20,164 
34,640 27,247 61 ,887 
30,139 36,657 66,796 

1,508 7,264 8,772 
23,352 57,172 80,524 
56,528 36,174 92,702 
36,924 34,179 71 ,103 
13,572 9,591 23,163 
71,608 50,273 121 ,881 

6,032 9,976 ' 16,008 
10,556 5,393 15,949 

463 865 385,155 849,020 

-
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
Group 

Figures in Rand 2013 

44. Prior period errors 

Certain errors in prior years have been accounted for in the current year 

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows: 

Statement of financial position 
Increase in Property, plant and equipment 
(reclasification of Investment property) 
Decrease in Investment property 
Increase in accumulated surplus 
Increase in accounts payable 

Statement of Financial Performance 
Increase in revenue 
Increase in administrative expenditure 

45. Risk management 

Interest rate risk 

2012 

5,593,878 

(5,593,878) 
(4,448,384) 

568,086 

6,462,304 
(1 ,445,834) 

NWPTB 

2013 2012 

5,593,878 

(5,593,878) 
(4,448,384) 

568,086 

6,462,304 
(1 ,445,834) 

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially 
independent of changes in market interest rates. 

The Group analyses its interest rate eJ:<posure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into 
consideration refinancing , renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the 
Group calculates the impact on surplus and deficit of a defined interest rate shift. For each simulation, the same interest 
rate shift is used for all currencies. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The 
municipality only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter
party. 

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an 
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating , 
risk cqntrol assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other 
factors . Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The 
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. 
Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate. 

46. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2013, the entity had accumulated surplus of R 350,435,307 and that the 
entity's total assets exceed its liabilities by R 984,547 ,976. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern . This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
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47. Events after the reporting date 

In April 2013, the management of Cookes Lake tourism facility was transferred from Dirapeng (Pty) Ltd to the North West 
Parks and Tourism Board under the management of the Hotel Schools Division. 

This will result in the reclassification of the Cookes Lake tourism facility from investment property to property, plant 
and equipment as this facility will now be owner occupied and used for rendering hospitality related services. 
This will also result in an increase in the related income and expenditure of the Hotel Schools Division. 

48. Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 492,812 492,812 

Current year irregular expenditure 555,279 492,812 555,279 492,812 

Closing balance 1,048,091 492,812 492,812 

The above irregular expenditure has been identified as a result of challenges arising from the consistent application of 
the supply chain management process. This irregular expenditure has been condoned by the Board of Directors for 
submission to Provincial Treasury for final condonation. 

The required disciplinary action against relevant employees is in process. 

49. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Opening balance 

Consulting fees 

Auditor General interest on non payment of fees 

Unsubstantiated credit card expenses 

Interest on late payments (VAT and PAVE) 
Overseas travel - WTM 

Closing balance 

1,521 ,357 

237,690 

229,555 

15,924 

940,683 

2,945,209 

1,061 ,836 

406,227 
53,294 

1,521,357 

69,314 

15,688 

85,002 

NWPTB - The above fruitless and wasteful expenditure was incurred as part of the Board's participation at the annua·l 
WTM (World Travel Market) held in London, England. This event was included in the Board's approved Strategic Plan 
as well as the Annual Performance Plan but was cancelled after the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure 
relates to the reservation of floor space to participate at the event, which is secured well in advance. All international 
travel requires prior approval from the Premier and this was not received via the Office of the MEC of the Department 
of Economic Development Conserv'i!tion, Environment and Tourism. 

Group - The company terminated a services level agreement between itself and Nations Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd 
regarding a contract related to the consolidation of three entities (Dirapeng (Pty) Ltd , Golden Leopard Resorts (Pty) 
Ltd and Madikwe River Lodge (Pty) Ltd). This termination resulted in the entity being indebted to Nations Advisory 

Services (Pty) Ltd in the amount of R 237 690 with no tangible service/benefits received. 

50. Retirement Benefit - NWPTB 

The Board continues to contribute to the North West Parks and Tourism Board Provident Fund, being a defined 
contribution plan. The. funds are registered under and governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956, as amended. All 
employees who are eligible through qualifying service are members of the respective funds. The Board does not currently 
bear and is in no way contractually liable for the cost of funding post retirement medical aid benefits. The contribution to 
the Medical Aid Funds, should an employee choose to continue membership of the scheme on retirement, is payable by 
the retired employee. 

The total cost charged to income of R 11 880 316 (2012: R 10 843 766) represents contributions payable to the 
scheme by the North West Parks and Tourism Board according to the rates specified in the rules of the scheme. This 
cost is recognised as a retirement benefit expense and is included under staff costs in note 18. The number of staff 
employed by the Board as at the end of the financial year is 557 permanent employees and 106 temporary employees 
(2012: 549 permanent employees and 33 temporary employees) 

16,020 
53,294 

69,314 
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Appendix E (1) Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure: NWPTB) 

2013 2013 2013 2013 
Actua lllKigel Viliance ViViance 

R R R % 

Reveooe from non exchange tr~ 
Provincial government funding 137 260 000 137 260 000 0% 
THETA grants received 663 895 (663 895) 100% RHriNsementoftlililg.xpenstSi'ICIInd 
Conditional grants · income • 9 098 644 9 098 644 0% 
DEDECT grants· forensic services 1 000 000 (1 000 000) 100% DEDECT fl.llilgfor forlfiSicse;ictsrt~stdb DEDECT 
Donations received 9 654 829 (9 654 829) 100% 

l57B77358 l~~SRm IHllB72~1 8% 

Reveooe from exchange transactions 
Concession fees 12 570 736 16 780 438 4 209 702 ·25% Bud9tt~jnpndon•~blSis•fltlCtlllancullt91M"ftdilonlfllCCI'UliblSis 
Entrance fees 27746 393 19 587737 (8158 656) 42% AnilcrtlStillisib"C'III'Ibrsbfltprls , ~PilfltsiMrgN•IonliPI'Ic 
Game sales 8 463 250 11 029 739 2 566 489 ·23% Notll9lfi'IISO~ISlfl~-.!u»cistlSt!I"Ontbuffflio 
Hotel schools income 11 960 087 15 804 623 3 844 536 ·24% 
·Application fees 25 660 344 000 318 340 ·93% 
• Banqueting income 3 292 496 3 t74 253 (118 243) 4% 
· Bar/beverage income 170 947 655 000 484 053 ·74% Lowrlilnlfl~-.!gutStrtctiwdlf\do....-riqhtstrts 
· Bungalow/hostel accommodation 838410 1185 000 346 590 ·29% 
• Food income· restaurant 389 382 1 022 050 632 668 ·62% 
· Food income· staff and students 1 988 720 2 015 600 26 880 -1% 
· Graduation income 36 033 (36 033) 100% 
• Hotel accommodation income 1 981 229 3400 320 1419092 ·42% Lowrlilnlfl~gutStsrtctiwdllldo....-riqhtstrts 
· Pasllysales 104 481 (104 481) 100% 
· School fees income 3132 729 4 008 400 875 671 ·22% 
Jazz Afnca Her~age income 108 (108) 100% 
Accommodation and camping 1 956 997 4 040 000 2 083 003 ·52% Lowr rAnk of guests mllcil9 ust of prlacconvnocblon fdtts filii lfl~-.1 
Angling fees 429 718 311 500 (118 218) 38% Prmtt co•lonshtldilcrtlStdcbylisib"curks llldlSsocillld lfl9i>cl fttS 
Filming 1400 (1 400) 100% 
Firewood 8 691 41149 32 458 ·19% 
Hi~ng fees 73 820 (73 820) 100% hcrt~Stilcurkofcby ~sitJrs Cl'llicilg ustofhililg fdtts 
Maps and books 846 448 719 000 (127 448) 18% Associ•lld'<oiflfltincrtmncbylisib"sbbiqqr"prls 
Other Income 734 973 (734 973) 100% Confrtneilgse-llctsclll"gtdb'jHo~Schoo~ 
Bad debts recovered 114 528 (114 528) 100% RtcO~ofdtbbrsP"tlio~llfitltnoff 
Discount received 292 (292) 100% 
Rent received 15 300 (15 300) 100% 
Rent received· houses 241 796 (241 796) 100% Staffo~housilgfdttscl\l"gtd 
Sundry income 648 595 (648 595) 1 00% hckJdn ilwm sttltmtnts 
Interest received 3456 559 2774 586 (681 973) 25% hltSintntoff~il~depositsfor~nqrpriods ,~lolldiMProjoctFIIIds 

69 269 691 71088m 1819 081 -3% 
TOTAL KOM: 226947 058 217 447 416 !9499 642) 4% 
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Appendix E {1) Actual versus Budget {Revenue and Expenditure: NWPTB) 

2013 2013 2013 2013 
Aduill Budget VDIIce v.a.ce 

R R R % 
EXPENSES 
Operllilg ll1d llhilistrllife elqiiiiSeS 

Advertisin~ and publicitf 800 453 916 000 115 547 87% 
Alien plant control 129 299 104 000 (25 299) 124% 
Audiovisual and photo~raphy 102 812 230 000 127188 45% 
AudHfees 3 035 723 2 200 000 (835 723) 138% .l&.dVGtnr~costsofouftlljconsolido~ .IFSfor6ytrs 

Bad debts - provision 10 002138 (10 002138) 1 00% Dobis osst<stchsclo..,Nforrocolll')' 
Impairment of Dlrapen~ loan 23 446 636 (23 446 636) 100% Dr"*"lo"'p-o"idtllforosclo..,Nfor""'III'Y 
Bank char~es 502 593 400 000 (1 02 593) 126% 
Bevera~e cost 477940 400 000 rJ7 940) 119% 
Books and periodicals 579 097 1 275 246 696149 45% No .....,..~pA>Ishod cUing 2DMl8 
Buildin~ maintenance 2 716 455 2 529 487 (1 86 968) 107% 
Cash shorta~es 9 569 (9 569) 100% 
Cell phone costs 434 881 712 372 277 491 61% ltsscbirnonlsflone<poclld 
Cleanin~ materials and services 1 489 759 865 300 (624 459) 172% Out-. OHSrtqlhmlnts,...,tyoflnhsn.tlnf-incn.-1 
Commissions paid 3 369 (3 369) 1 00'16 Co emission forl.lndrwt1ol for 2DMlt!t noistd •tw-bud9ttwoYOI 
Commissions- Land rentallladikwe 1127 090 (1127 090) 100% 
Consumables 280 908 402 243 121 335 70'16 
Directors fees 896121 600 000 (296121) 149% hcn.-lnlll'obcrofrnetfnvsotw-flt...,.~lnontofonowbord 
Donations 1711 29 000 27 289 6% 
Electricitf and water 4439 618 3 326 056 (1113 562) 133% Dut-.lrtffi'ocroOSts ,~*<lici\'costs 
Employee relations 130 775 150 000 19 225 87'16 
Employment equitf 85 351 260 000 174 649 33% 
Entertainment 6 836 68 850 62 014 10% 
Equipment maintenance 1 930 576 2 325 200 394 624 83% F•-1'191hcm.doutflonllltcipl~ 
Food cost 3212749 1 637 500 (1 575 249) 196% o-~incn ... lnfoodpicos 
Frei~ht and carta~e 73 911 173 000 99 089 43% 
Functionst.vorkshops 557 319 970 600 413 281 57% R.O.Cion~IU!ksof-psprtcipl~ll 
Game census 1 597170 1 550 000 (47170) 103% 
Graduation ceremony 174 865 120 000 (54 865) 146% 
Gratujtf/staf!tips 1 337 (133n 100% 
Guest supplies 60130 90 000 29 870 67% 
Induction courses 20 000 20 000 0% 
Health and safety workplace 289 348 280 000 (9 348) - 103% 
Insurance 708 042 700 000 (8 042) 101% 
Insurance a~~re~ate fund 150 000 150 000 0% 
Interest paid 316115 500 000 183 885 63% o ................. inflt..p1oiporlonoflaltsnoro.wtof-.. ,..,_ts 
Internal sales -Hotel Schools Division 9 765 (9 765) 100% 
Itinerant tralnln~ expenses 6 740 (6 740) 100% 
Kitchen fuel 96 574 65 000 (31 574) 149% 
La~ndry 252 474 200 870 (51 604) 126% 
Le~al fees 1 030 313 240 000 (790 313) 429% hcn.-lio9olxWV 
Ucence and membership fees 941 056 888 399 (526sn 106% 
Loose tools 250 263 282 675 32 412 89% 
Loss on disposal of assets 91 830 (91 830) 100% 
Maintenance - ~rounds 876 282 877 250 968 100% 
Maintenance- fence 1 763131 2 289 953 526 823 77'16 Ulisolonofot.r solr"OIS ofMdilg" rnolnt.in~tosl'uclrt 
Maintenance -fire breaks 60155 304100 243 945 20% 
Maintenance- roads 3 677 377 3 741 000 63 623 98% 
Marketin~ promotions /workshops 3 247 493 3 432 264 184 771 95% 
Office rental 1130579 1 068 000 (62 579) 106% 
Or~anlsational development 107 559 110 000 2441 98% 
Other maintenance 106 522 (106 522) 100% 
Overseas travel 662 064 1 600 315 938 251 41% Prici!>•lonll~lrnolol\llsliowsnotwo"'<< 
Performance mana~ement 335 480 1 300 000 964 520 26% l.inilodosstSsmontof.....,yoosul>lodcof.....,sionof~clo""'*'ls 
Pest control 19 320 65 000 45 680 30% 
Product development 1 038 634 750 000 (288 634) 138% hcn.-!SiotMEdtwlopnwnt 
Professional fees 973 818 1 859 702 885 884 52% o ........ ~ ..... ofconSlAtlnls 
Rates and taxes 796 520 858 750 62 230 93% 
Recruitment 161 638 350 000 188 362 46'16 
Removal costs 475 (475) 100% 
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Appendix E (1) Actual versus Budget (Revenue and Expenditure: NWPTB) 

2013 2013 2013 2013 
Actual Budget_ Variance Variance 

R R R % 
EXPENSES (CorfilJed) 
OperiDlg and acnnstroe expenses 

Rent of equipment 1 003 685 1 425 540 421 855 70% Contx1s1Xpi'ilqi111ltl/Zll4rtsUfngildea'e~plfmen1sascontxtsrulrnilatondall 
Research and surveys 806186 775 000 (31186) 104% 
Refunds 1 392 (1 392) 100% 
Salaries· temporal'f workers 149 841 318163 168 322 4(% 
Security expenses 3416710 4109 871 693161 83% OwriXpecbtonofSfCIIi\'req•hments 
Show expenses 1 291 012 ·taos ooo 516 988 71% Projectfl.l'ldilcjuiistd~i -majore..nts 
Software developmenVupgrade 140 855 383 050 242195 37% 
Special projects 662119 700 000 37 881 95% 
staff functions 281 734 244 000 (37 734) 115% 
Staff housing 1192002 1 460 250 268 248 82% Projectfll'dnquiistd~i -miinltnancecosts 
staff meetings 499 430 744 550 245120 67% 
staff transport 113 600 132 400 18 800 86% 
Staff wellness programmes 63 098 90 000 26 902 70% 
stationel'f and printing 1 394 791 1917 320 522 529 73% .w.u.lroportfor al2notpo.illshed as :on~led 
Subscriptions 3 000 3 000 0% 
Subsidial'f expenses 1 326 649 1 000 000 (326 649) 133% hcrme i1 s~ plfmenls flllded by NIW TB 
Subsistence 1 829 830 2 069 700 239 870 88% 
Supplies 84 369 64 050 (20 319) 132% 
Telephone and postage 2 365 319 2190 830 (174 489) 108% 
Theft/fraud 5 000 (5 000) 100% 
Training 2 589 493 1 950 000 (639 493) 133% Professionall'!l\hj t.rilQ colTses , Re.m.rsedrefr~ Gr:ontsreceiwd 
Translocation costs 80 000 80 000 0% 
Travelling costs 9 037 486 7 308 340 (1 729146) 124% LI"~M~ :oni'ameilfuelpictsaswehsxi>nes 
Un~orms 595 689 843 650 247 96t 71% 
Vehicle running costs 3 333 518 2 975 945 (357 573) 112% 
Marketing events 100 000 200 000 100 000 50% 
Sundl'f expenses · DEDECT Forensic Services 1 000 020 (1 000 020) 1 00% Fll'dnqreceiwd hmDEDECT for pljl!lfntofforens~sr>icesreflrlded 
Salaries· staff c~sts 131 688 016 128 781 695 (2 906 321) 102% Mnu~s~i'ausehiqhrflatblldgeledaflln.nionnf90blons 
Conditional grants· expenses 9 098 644 9 098 644 100% 
Madikwe Restoration Project 
·Road maintenance 683 618 8 500 000 7 816 382 8% Fllldedbyflebuffillo il1Cionhtlcli13JIVIDI!yieldinqowrR!l:M forfleresllraionofMidik.., 
-Eastern airstrip 282 898 1 800 000 1 517102 16% 
-Western airstrip 171 960 250 000 78 040 69% 
-Bush clearing 3 638 393 3 830 000 191 607 95% 
-Marketin~ strategy 79 800 500 000 420 200 16% 
-Management plan 141 316 500 000 358 684 28% 
-N'v\'PTB marketing 1 759191 2 000 000 240 809 88% 
TOTAL OPERATIONAL EXPENSES 258084423 231322130 (26 762 293} 112% 
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